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\).LI oA \).03 mé_o_" q"..l uPAl Glagagoell ule dLalall SEYEN Y] (‘i) 2,972,933 952,289 QJJJi JUya 3,000,000 2024 JUT 2o UALd
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176,704 93,401 alAas Qyjlnog dyjliriwlg diae Wil Jlodiwlg &jlail jlaiy dAaypah auni ¢ring jJlodiwlg é)laill jlaiy dAayih & o Wllw D dyjlail Mo mil) d ol
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Chairman’s Message
Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of my colleagues, members of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank you
for your presence and to present to you the 20 annual report of the company’s results and
achievements for the year ended 31/12/2023.

Dear Shareholders,

During the year 2023, despite all the circumstances, Bindar was able to maintain its leading
position in the finance sector; the operating revenues during the year 2023 amounted to JD
7.073 million, The Company achieved a net profit after tax of JD 5.252 million, with a return of
26.3% on the company’s capital of JD 20 million.

In the year 2023, the company continued to balance between the sources and uses of funds,
which has positively impacted the company’s performance and maximized the yield for
shareholders.

In 2024, the company seeks to strengthen its role in the lending market through launching new
products in accordance with Islamic Sharia’a in order to widen its customer’s base through
opening new marketing channels to meet our target segments expectations.

Dear Shareholders,

Lastly, | would like to extend my thanks to my colleagues, members of the Board of Directors
and the management of the company and its employees, for their efforts to achieve further
progress, success and growth. We call on the Almighty to help us achieve further progress in
the service of our national economy under the banner of His Majesty King Abdullah Il bin Al-
Hussein.

Vice Chairman of the Board

Board of Directors report
Dear Shareholders,

The Board is pleased to present to you the 20 annual report on the activities of the company
and results during the year 2023.

Bindar Trading & Investment “Bindar” was incorporated on 17/4/2000 as a trading and
investment company specialized in installments sales operations of durable consumer goods,
specifically cars. Bindar was one of the first shareholding companies in Jordan operating in
this sector.

Since the establishment of the Company, the capital of the Company has been increased to
reach
20 million Jordanian dinar.

Paid up Capital from 2004 to 2023:

20,000,000

2,000,000

A

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008-2023

Dear Shareholders,
The following data shows the values of the Company’s activities during the year 2023:

The table below shows the company’s sales for the last five years:-

Number of applications 1,309 2,201 2,271 2,113 3,505
Total sales during the year (JD) | 18,492,180 | 23,682,214 | 27,259,551 | 32,904,943 | 54,185,929
Monthly average sales (JD) 1,541,015 1,973,518 2,271,629 2,742,079 4,515,494
] Average per application (JD] 14,127 10,760 12,003 15,573 15,460
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The following charts present the above data: 2- Breakdown of sales by sector:

1- Sales figures The 2023 sales breakdown by sector is as follows:
A: The number of transactions in the last five years: - e
Category No. of applications financed Percentage

Transportations cars 12 866,125 2%
Rent a car 54 4,944,150 9%
Yellow Taxi 26 605,814 1%
Islamic Financing 3,058 46,025,604 85%
Real-estate 3 470,000 1%
Projects-Trading 18 472,206 1%
Durable Goods 334 802,030 1%
Total 3,505 54,185,929 100 %

The chart below shows the breakdown of sales by sector:

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Yellow Taxi
605,814

B: Volume of the sales in the last five years:

Transportations ¢a
866,125 W

2%/’—4—- sject -
Trading
54,185,929 470,000  Durable Goods" oy
1% 802,030
1%

32,904,943
27,259,551

23,682,214 .
3- Collection of Installments :

18,492,180
The collection of installments operations carried out through specific policies and procedures
which are subject to periodic review as these policies and procedures are subject to precise
standards which are developed continuously.




Recommendations of the Board

The Board of directors recommends adopting the agenda supplied with the invitation to the
shareholders to hold the 21 ordinary general assembly of the company which includes the
following:

1- Read the decisions of the previous reqular General Assembly’s Meeting held on 20/04/2023.

2- Vote for the report of the Board of Directors for fiscal year 2023 and the Company’s action
plan.

3- Vote for the Independent External Auditor report of the company for the year ended
31/12/2023, and vote for the Financial Statements of the company for the fiscal year ended
31/12/2023.

4- Deem the Chairman and Board Members as discharged of duties of trust and any liabilities
whatsoever and howsoever arising for the year 2023.

5- Elect an Independent External Auditor for the fiscal year 2024 & determine their fees or
authorize the Board of Director to determine their fees.

Dear Shareholders,

The Board represented by its president and members are thanking you for attending this
meeting and wish you and the Company lasting success.

Board of Directors

Clarifications in accordance with the requirements of the J.S.C.

1- Highlights on company’s main activities, geographical locations, capital
volume and number of employees:

A- Main activities of the company:

Financing vehicles, real estate, consumer durables, medium & small projects & industrial
equipment’s, The Company’s main activity has been focused since its inception on Car loans &
Real-estate loans.

B- The company’s geographical locations and number of employees per location

Geogrjaphlc Address Telephone Number of
locations number Employees

Headquarter - | Al Madinah Al-Monawrah St. - Al Saad

1 Main Branch Building No. 241 06-9518716 o
Wadi Sagra Wadi Sagra Street, King Abdullah Gardens, )

2" Branch Al-Dabbas Building (12) De-5667172 6

3 Al Wehdat Al Wghdat - khawla bent Al Azwar St. - Afanah 06-4733334 4
Branch Building,

4 |1rbid Branch Firas AL Ajlouni street - Sulaiman Khrais 02-7256226 4

Complex

5 | Sportcity Sarh Al Shaheed Street-Building 110 06-5560808 5

Branch

C- The size of the capital investment of the Company:

The company has total equity of JD 45,829,580 as at 31/12/2023, of which JD 20,000,000
represent the paid-up capital, JD 4,590,604 represent the statuary reserve, JD 16,014,793
represent the retained earnings, JD 16,904 Reserve for financial assets valuation, JD 5,205,677
net shareholders equity in the merged company and JD 1,602 represent the additional paid in
Capital.

2- Description of subsidiaries:
a- Robo’a Al-Sharq Al-Aqarieh:

Robo’a Al-Sharg was established as a limited liability company registered in the Ministry of
Industry on 28/3/2006 under No. 11313 with a paid - up capital of JD100,000, The field is sale
lands and real estate, the ownership percentage of the main company is 100%, and its in
Jordan.

b- Rakeen Al-Agarieh

Rakeen was established as a limited liability company and registered on 11/3/2010 in the
Ministry of Industry under No. 21149 with a paid-up capital of JD30,000, The field is sale lands
and real estate, the ownership percentage of the main company is 100%, and its in Jordan.
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C- Bindar leasing company: Member - Tamkeen Leasing Company From 01/01/2023 Until 06/08/2023
From 06/09/2023 Until 31/12/2023

Bindar Leasing company was established as a limited liability company and registered on Name of the Individual
29/09/2013in the Ministry of Industry under No. 34128 with a paid -up capital of JD 1,000,000. Representing the Legal Entity | M- APdel-Qader Mohammad Abdel-Qader Shahwan
The company was established to operate in the field of financial leasing as a new product Date of Joining the Board 10/04/2022
needed in the Jordanian market, the ownership percentage of the main company is 100%, and Date of Birth 01/10/1966
its in Jordan. Academic Qualification Diploma in Programming and Systems Analysis

Experience and Posts held 33 years of experience in all banking sectors in the Arab Jordan Investment
- Based on the decision of the Extraordinary General Assembly held on 23 November 2022, Bank and InvestBank, the last position of Executive Director / in invest bank
it was approved to merge Al Qimeh Auto Trade Facilities Company with Bindar Trade and from 2015 to 2021
Investment Company where as Bindar Trade and Investment Company becomes the merging
company and Al Qimeh Auto Trade Facilities Company becomes the merged company . The Member - Mr. Hassan Ibrahim Said Al-Amad From 01/01/2023 Until 06/08/2023
merged procedures were completed on é September 2023, it was approved to use the opening From 06/09/2023 Until 31/12/2023
balances resulting from the merger as of 1 January 2023. Date of Joining the Board 29/04/2018

Date of Birth 01/01/1959
3- Board members / Senior managers name, titles and brief on each of them Academic Qualification Master of Business Administration (MBA)- USA

Experience and Posts held 1991- up to date Managing Partner at Nabulsi and Amad company
a. Board Members: Names, Titles and a Brief on each of them: 2009 - 2013 - Member of Amman Chamber of Commerce

2011 - 2013 - Member of Amman Municipality council

Chairman - Tamkeen Leasing Company From 01/01/2023 Until 06/08/2023 Member of Jordan Strategy Forum o
From 06/09/2023 Until 31/12/2023 Member of Jordanian Businessmen Association.

N tthe Individual Member of the board of directors of the International Arbitration Chamber
ame of the Individua . (Jordan)
Representing the Legal Entity Mr. Jamal M.F. Fariz
Date of Joining the Board 21/02/2022 .
Date of Birth 20/09/1958 Member - Mr. Khaled Mohammed Hashem Al Saqgaf  From 01/01/2023 Until 06/08/2023
Aeademic Qualificat v Py From 06/09/2023 Until 31/12/2023
t t t
Eca emie “ad' 'Pca lonh o Gas erlOM a”ager:eT” D s STRTIE Date of Joining the Board 04/01/2022
xperience and Posts he eneral Manager of Tamkeen Leasing Company - Unti :
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Haya Cultural Center Date of Birth 12/02/1974
Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Jordanian Network Global Academic Qualification Master of Law
Compact Experience and Posts held Member of the Board of Directors of the Jordanian Microfinance
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Jordanian Brazilian Business Company “Tamweelcom” since 2010.
Association N _ Member of the Board of Trustees of Kings Academy since 10/2022.
Invest Bank last position as Acting General Manager 1986-2011 Member of the Board of Directors of the American-Jordanian Chambers of
Member of the Board of Directors of the Jordan Chamber of Commerce Commerce since 3/2022.
2013-2018 Member of the Board of Directors of King Abdullah Center for Design and
Member of the Board of Directors of the Amman Chamber of Commerce, Development, from 2012 until 2017 «previously».
Treasurer 2013-2018 Member of the Board of Directors of the Kadbi Investment Group (KIG) from
Member of the Board of Directors of the Greater Amman Municipality 2014 until 6/2019 « previously».
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Jordanian European Business
Association (Jeba) 2015-2019 b. Executive Management: Names, Titles and a Brief on Each of Them:

Vice-Chairman - Tamkeen Leasing Company From 01/01/2023 Until 06/08/2023

S el M e General Manager - Mr. Raad Munir Abdul Rahim Abu Rassa
Name of the Individual

Representing the Legal Entity Mr. Awni Mahrd Diab Amar Date of Joining 21/01/2018

Date of Joining the Board 15/07/2019 Date of Birth 12/12/1976

Date of Birth 01/02/1972 Academic Qualification B.A. Accounting

Academic Qualification Master of Banking and financial sciences specializing in banking Experience and Posts held 2014 - 1/2018 Invest Bank - Executive Manager / Organizational Development

Experience and Posts held 2/1997 - up to date - Invest Bank - Executive director / Subsidiaries 2011 -2013 Invgst Bank - Executive Manager / Branches Network

Department 2008 - 2011 Capital Bank of Jordan - Manager / Product Development &

Sales Dept.
2004 - 2008 Standard Chartered Bank - Manager / Mortgage & Auto Loans
Dept.
1998 - 2004 Arab Jordan Investment Bank - Section Head / Foreign Invest-
ment Dept.
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Financial & Administration Manager - Mr. Waleed Moh’d Hasan Al Sourieh

Date of Joining

01/10/2007

Date of Birth

18/04/1978

Academic Qualification

B.A Accounting

Experience and Posts held

2018- until now Financial & Administration Manager - Bindar Trading &
Investment Co.

2007-2018 Assistant Financial Manager - Bindar Trading & Investment Co.
2006-2007 Chief Accountant - Tower Trading Corp.

2005-2006 Senior Accountant - Nassim dada & Partners Co.

2000-2005 General Accountant - Advanced Industrial Advertising Co.

Credit Manager - Mr. Sameh Noor Al-Deen Nimer Yaiesh

Date of Joining

01/03/2018

Date of Birth

13/05/1976

Academic Qualification

B.A. financial and banking science

Experience and Posts held

2001 - 2/2018 Assistant Credit manager- Invest Bank

1999 - 2001 Accountant - Safeway

Branches & Sales Manager -

Date of Joining

Mr. Assad Mohammad Assad AL-Khamaiseh
19/06/2016

Date of Birth

07/10/1974

Academic Qualification

B.A. Accounting

Experience and Posts held

1996 - 5/2016 Senior credit officer in retail credit department for Auto Loans

- Jordan Kuwait Bank.

4- Names of major owners of shares and number of shares comparing to the
previous year (who own 5% and above):

1 | Tamkeen Leasing Company

31/12/2022 31/12/2023

No. of
shares

19,799,084 99% 19,835,235 99.1%

‘percentage No. of shares | percentage

5- Company competitive standing within the sector of its business activities,
Main market and its share in the local and international markets:

The company does not depend on a specific provider and/or main clients whose transaction
amounts equals or exceeds 10% of total booking.

7- Government protection or privileges obtained by the company or any of its
products under laws and regulations or others:

Under applicable laws, regulations or others, the Company and its products do not have any
government protection or any other privileges.
The Company has not obtained any patents or franchising rights.

8- Decisions issued by the government, international organizations or any
other authority that constituted material effect on the Company’s business,
its products or competitiveness:

There are no decisions issued by the Government, international organizations or any other
authorities that have material impact on the Company’s business or any of its products or on

its competitiveness.

International Quality Standards do not apply to the Company’s business.

The main market for the Company’s activities is confined to the domestic market (in general)
and the company’s main activity is confined to installment sales, our market share in Auto loan
is 5%.

The company’'s competition in the real estate sector is limited compared with banks and
companies specialized in installments of real estate in terms of duration and amount of
installment, but the Company offered its services to many of its customers and within the
limits calculated striving to increase the size of our share in this sector in the future.

6- The degree of the company’s reliance in conducting its operations on
specific providers and/or clients (Locally and Internationally):
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9- The company’s organizational structure and number of employees b. Number of Employees and categories of qualifications

A.Organizational structure of the Company
Educational Qualifications No. of Employees

c. Training programs for Company employees:

24 PHD -

;E Master 2

: & Higher Diploma -

BA 63

i : : Diploma 1
High School 14
i : : Total number of employees 80

Senior Tellers

1
[
2
]
a
£
s
8

£
Z No. Course Name No. of Employees
: 1 Excellence in Customer Service 5
: 2 Certified global sanctions specialist (CIB) 2
L3 g 3 International Financial Reporting Standard? 2
% ,E , % ; 4 Collect Staff Efficiency Improvement 4
Z i; 5 E “ 5 THIS CERTIFICATE ACCREDITS THAT 1
: 6 Mini MBA IN PRACTICE 1
E g E 7 Certified Shari'ah Advisor & auditor (CSAA) 1
? . 2 8 Excel Beginner 1
;: i gg . 9 Professional diploma specializing in banking credit. 1
. E : :ﬂ : 10 Anti-Money Laundering 73
g ; " Certified Internal Auditor 1
% 5 35k “:g 12 The Certified Islamic Specialist in Shari a Auditing (CISSA] 1
: : 35 EE 13 Diploma Human Resources Management 1

Procurement

10- Risk to which company is exposed

There are no risks that the Company may be exposed to during the next fiscal year that have
any material impact on operations.

Audit Committee

Credit Department

Internal Audit Department

11- Company’s achievements and major events during 2023

Branches

1- The company was able to maintain its market share and continue to achieve the goals for
the year 2023.

2- The company was able to maintain an acceptable cash collection ratio from customers,
which reflected positively on the performance of the credit portfolio.

3- Improving the portfolio performance and reducing the non-performing loans.

4- The ability of the company to meet its obligations on time.

9- Merged of Al-Qimeh Auto Trade Facilities Company.

Branches &
Sales
Department
Branches &
Sales Manager

Processing

Excutive committee of Fasilities and Credit

®
= £
5 =
£ £
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The company’s achievements can be summarized in figures as follows:-

1- Facilities Portfolio:
a: Facilities portfolio annually over the past five years:

Gross Portfolio - JD 50,407,182 69,760,153 87,288,516 115,511,658 154,377,526

Chart of facilities portfolio for the period from 2019 to 2023

154,377,526

115,511,658

87,288,516
69,760,153
50,407,182

_—

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

B: Net Installment Receivables by Years

49,266,590 Year Amount / JD

2024 49,266,590

33,199,466 2025 33,199,466

25,270,990 2026 25,270,990
19,237,100

13934750 13 468 630 2027 19,237,100

2028 13,934,750

2028< 13,468,630

Total ‘ 154,377,526

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 >2028

2- A general overview of the company’s assets over the past five years:

Year 2019 2020 2021 | 2022 | 2023

Net Portfolio - JD 35,882,356 | 51,097,697 | 65,662,292 84,318,473 | 111,556,717
Investment portfolio 146,548 147,078 146,660 148,197 151,957
Other assets 4,042,362 | 4,437,887 | 4,830,368 4,802,169 5,942,080
Total Assets 42,516,610 | 58,250,531 | 73,267,417 94,760,370 | 121,211,765

3- Return on capital:
The below table shows the return on capital from 2019 until 2023:

Year 2019 2020 | 2021 | 2022 2023

Paid up Capital 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
Total Revenues 5,578,158 6,936,786 8,379,131 | 11,482,816 | 15,218,231
Net profit before tax 3,509,083 3,494,949 4,724,990 9,922,702 7,073,043
Return on invested capital 17.5% 17.5% 23.6% 49,6% 35,4%
Net profit after tax 2,542,714 2,496,565 3,406,081 8,161,208 5,252,167
Return on invested capital 12.7% 12.5% 17% 40,8% 26,3%

4- Statement of profits, losses and distribution
The table below shows the company’s profits during the last five years:

vear 2019 2020 2021 2022 | 208

Operational profit 3,408,579 | 3,478,811 | 4,637,461 | 6,249,008 7,073,043
Net profit before tax 3,509,083 | 3,494,949 | 4,724,990| 9,922,702 7,073,043

Net profit for the period after tax 2,542,714 | 2,496,565 | 3,406,081 | 8,161,208 | 5,252,167

The chart below shows the total revenue and net profit for the period from 2019 to 2023

15,218,231

6,936,786

5,578,158 5,252,167




5- Evolution of shareholders’ equity
The following table shows the shareholders equity development:

Shareholder equity 26,508,150 | 29.005245| 32.410,908| 40573.653| 45,829,580
5;&1‘;” on the shareholders 9.6% 8.6% 10.5% 20.1% 11.5%

13- Time series for realized profit and loss, dividends, net shareholders’
equity and securities rates throughout the last five years:

Statement 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Net retained profits 3,850,927 5,996,628 8,930,210 | 16,678,819 16,014,793
Dividends - - - - -
Net shareholder equity 26,508,150 29,005,245 32,410,908 | 40,573,653 45,829,580
Stock price 0,900 1,100 1,280 1,450 1,400

The chart below shows the evolution of shareholders equity from 2019 to 2023

14- Company’s financial standing analysis and business results during the
past five years:

45,829,580

Financial rates

32,410,908

26,508,150 R 1 | Return on invested capital 12,7% 12.5% 17% 40,8% 26,3%

2 | Net profit margin 45,6% 36% 40,6% 71,6% 34,5%

3 | Trading rate 138,6% 65,2% 48,3% 62,9% 49 2%

4 | Coverage rate of interests 466% 357,4% 341% 408% 246%

5 | Debt to shareholders equity 54,4% 94,6% 120,4% 128,6% 156,5%

3 6 | Total liabilities to assets 37,7% 50,2% 55,8% 57,2% 62,2%
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 7 | Debt to capital 72,1% 137,2% 195,1% 260,8% |  358,7%

8 | Equity to total assets 62,3% 49.8% 44.2% 42,8% 37,8%

6- The price of securities:
The closing prices of the company’s share as of the last five years are shown in the table and
chart:

15- Company’s developments, future plans and Boards’ outlook:

1- Achieving shareholder goals by improving the company’s financial position and increasing
profitability.

2- Launching products in accordance with Islamic Sharia’a.

3- Utilizing the company’s funds to ensure higher return and simultaneously reduce the cost
of funds.

4- Sign sales agreements to promote and grow the portfolio.

1 e . & & O.ZB oo o8 O*s (T E N .0.4 6 1 KUd Iees
OQ oe e 00 .0' v

The audit fees including the tax for Bindar and its subsidiaries for the year 2023 amounted to

0.900 1.100 1.28 1.45 1,40

0.125 0.17 0.408 0.263

Closing price / JD
EPS 0.127

0.00 4
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 JD 20,000 as below:
No. COMPANY AMOUNT
12- Financial impact from extraordinary operations occurring during the 1 Bindar Trading $ Investment Company 18.500
fiscal year and not included in the Company’s main activities: 5 Bindar Leasing Company 500
: . L : . . . . 3 Robo’a Al-Sharqg Al-Agarieh Company 500
There is no financial impact from any extraordinary operations occurring during the fiscal year.
! P y yop g g ! y 4 Rakeen Al-Agarieh Company 500
Total 20,000
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17- Statement of the number of securities registered in the names of board
members, executive personnel, their relatives, relatives of the board
members and companies they control compared to last year:

a. The number of securities owned by the members of the board:

No. of
No. of shares shares
owned
- . . by the
Position Nationality companies
31/12/2022 | 31/12/2023 | .ontrolled
by any of
them
1 | Tamkeen Leasing Company Chairman Jordanian 19,799,084 19,835,235 ---
2 | Mr. Jamal M.F. Fariz Chairman Jordanian - - ---
3 | Mr. Awni Mah’d Diab A'mar Vice-Chairman Jordanian - - ---

4 Mr. Abdel-Qader Mohammad Member Jordanian ) )
Abdel-Qader Shahwan

Mr. Hassan lbrahim Said Al-

5 Member Jordanian 12,200 12,200 ---
Amad

g | Mr. Khaled Mohammed Hashem Member Jordanian 10,000 10,000
Al Saqqaf

b. The number of securities owned by executive management:

No. of shares

Position Nationality companies

31/12/2022 | 31/12/2023 | controlled by
any of them

1 !Vlr. Raad Munir Abdul Rahim Abu General Manager Jordanian --- --- ---
Rassa
Mr. Waleed Moh'd Hasan Al- Financial & .

2 Administration Jordanian --- --- ---
Zboon

Manager

3 Ml.ﬁ' sameh Noor Al-Deen Nimer Credit Manager Jordanian --- --- ---
Yaiesh
Mr. Assad Mohammad Assad AL- | Branches & sales .

4 . Jordanian --- --- ---
Khamaiseh Manager

¢. The number of shares owned by the relatives of board members and relatives of the senior
managementexecutive:

- There are no shares registered in the name of relatives of the board members or in the name
of relatives of the senior executive management.

- There are no shares registered in the name of companies controlled by any of the board
members or of the senior executive management or their relatives.

18- Benefits, Remunerations and Travel Allowances of the Board Chairman
and Members, and Senior Executive Management in 2023:

a. Chairman and members of the Board of Directors benefits and rewards:

Remuneration

Name of member Total annual & Membership for | Total annual
salaries Transportation 2023 benefits
for 2023

Mr. Jamal M.F. Fariz - 5,000 4,597 9,597
Mr. Awni Mah’d Diab A'mar - 5,000 4,597 9,597
Mr. Abdel-Qader Mohammad Abdel- ) 5,000 4,597 9,597
Qader Shahwan

Mr. Hassan Ibrahim Said Al-Amad - 5,000 4,597 9,597
Mr. Khaled Mohammed Hashem Al ) 5.000 4,597 9,597
Saqqaf

-Tere are no financial or non-financial rewards granted to the members of the Board of
Directors other than those mentioned above.

-No one of the of the Board of Directors members obtained any benefits through his work in
the company and did not disclose them whether the benefits were material or not, whether
they were for him personally or for any of those related to him during the year 2023.

B. Executives Management benefits and rewards:

Total Annual Annual Total
Annual

Position annual | transportation travel annual
. rewards .
salaries allowance expenses | benefits

Mr. Raad Munir Abdul
1 Rahim Abu Rassa’ General Manager | 140,463 | - 45,000 - 185,463

: Financial &
p |Mr Waleed Moh'd Hasan | s yinistration | 42,760 | 840 7500 |- 51,100
Al-Zboon
Manager

3 |Mr. Sameh Noor Al-Deen | o i Manager | 40,100 | - 4,000 - 44,100
Nimer Yaiesh

Mr. Assad Mohammad Branches & sales
4 Assad AL-Khamaiseh Manager 35,985 840 4,000 i 40,825

19- Donations and grants paid by the Company during the fiscal year:
There are no donations.

20- Contracts, projects and commitments made by the company to
subsidiaries, sister companies or with the Chairman, General Manager or
any employee at the Company or their relatives:

There are no contracts, projects and commitments signed by the company with the subsidiaries,
sister companies, or with the Chairman, Board Members, General Manager or any employee
at the Company or their relatives.

21- The Company’s contribution to environment protection and local
community service:
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a - The company’s contribution to the protection of the environment:

The Company has no contribution in the protection of the environment.

Board of Directors:
Below table shows the current & resigned members of the Board of Directors during 2023:

Executive /
b - The company’s contribution in community service: Non-executive
The Company has no contribution in community service. Sy '”depﬁnde”t/ Laifa i Jolriing
on
. . Independent
22- Shari’a Committee Non executive
Tamkeen Leasing Company Chairman | Non From 01/01/2023 Until 06/08/2023
. . . . represented by Mr. Jamal M. F Fariz From 06/09/2023 Until 31/12/2023
A representative of the auditor of Bindar Trading and Investment Company, Mr. Hatem Al- Independent
Qawasmi (License No. 656), and on his behalf is Mr. Atta Erekat.(License No. 1027) and Mrs. Tlim:‘ei?]t;dazi“E/lrc‘;”\;lgmyah,d Diap | Vice Egg‘execu“ve From 01/01/2023 Until 06/08/2023
Ibtisam Al-Sawafta in the event of his absence. e o Chairman || jenendent | From 06/09/2023 Until 31/12/2023
Tamkeen Leasing Company Non-executive
- A representative of the auditor of Al-Qimmah Automotive Facilities Company, Mr. Rabie represented by Mr. Abdel-Qader Member | Non From 01/01/2023 Until 06/08/2023
Shalabi (License No. 1002), and on his behalf is Mr. Mahmoud Al-Zaboun.(License No. 1028] e Independent | oM 06/09/2023  Until 31/12/2023
and Mrs. Ibtisam Al-Sawafta in his absence. e Hasean [branim Saced AAmad | Memper | NON-€xecutive | From 01/01/2023 Until 06/08/2023
' Independent From 06/09/2023 Until 31/12/2023
The Shari'a Committee consists of three members who are distinguished with legitimate Mr. Khaled Mohammed Hashem Member | Non-executive | From 01/01/2023 Until 06/08/2023
banking expertise, and its mission is to approve agreements and contracts related to the Al Saqqaf Independent | From 06/09/2023 Until 31/12/2023

transactions conducted by the company, and to ensure that they are in compliance with the
provisions of the Shari'aand its principles and to provide their opinion on products, transactions,
and applications, as well as in the inquiries provided by the company, And issue appropriate
decisions and fatwas.

In 2023 the Shari’a Committee held 5 meetings:

Absence during

An executive committee for merging was formed by the Minister of Industry, Trade and Supply

on 5/10/2023 until 9/6/2023, consisting of:

BOD Members of Bindar Trading & Investment company:

Tamkeen Leasing Company represented by Mr. Jamal M. F Fariz

Tamkeen Leasing Company represented by Mr. Abdel-Qader Mohammad Abdel-Qader

Name of the Committee member Title 2023 Notes
Shahwan

Dr. Basel Yousef Mohammd AlShaer Chairman - Mr. Hassan lbrahim Saeed Al Amad

Dr. Safwan »Mohammad Rida» Ali odeibat Member - Mr. Khaled Mohammed Hashem Al Saqqaf

Dr. Hiyam Mohammad Abedalkader AlZeydaneen AlSoudi Member . Mr. Yogsef Turkl Yousef Al-Jabour, pursuant to a letter of representation from Tamkeen
Financial Leasing Company.

Mr. Ass’ad Mohammad Ass’ad AlKhamayseh Rapporteur -

23- Corporate Governance Rules:

Information and details related to applying the rules of corporate governance in the company
Bindar seeks guidance from corporate governance principles and reserves no effort in
enhancing policies and procedures within Jordan Securities Commission and other regulatory
entities regulations, ensuring high level of transparency.

Bindar will apply corporate governance regulations to achieve the highest governance levels
and transparency to enhance shareholders’ confidence, satisfaction and to safeguard their
investments.

B- Names of the current and resigned members of the Board of Directors during the year,
(executive / non-executive - independent / non-independent).

BOD Members of Al-Qimmah Automotive Facilities Company company:

Mr. Raad Munir Abdul Rahim Abu Rassa’

Mr. Awni Mah’'d Diab A'mar

Mr. Waleed Moh’d Hasan Al Zboun

- A representative of the auditor of Bindar Trading and Investment Company, Mr. Hatem Al-
Qawasmi (License No. 656), and on his behalf is Mr. Atta Erekat.(License No. 1027) and Mrs.

Ibtisam Al-Sawafta in the event of his absence.

- A representative of the auditor of Al-Qimmah Automotive Facilities Company, Mr. Rabie
Shalabi (License No. 1002}, and on his behalf is Mr. Mahmoud Al-Zaboun.(License No. 1028)

and Mrs. Ibtisam Al-Sawafta in his absence.
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C-Legal Board Member representatives with a description of their roles H- Members of the Audit Committee and their qualifications and financial and accounting

experience:
Number | Name of the Juridical person | Type Membership status Nots Academic
Name of the Committee member | Title Qualificati Experience
1 Tamkeen Leasing Company Private limited Shareholding | Non-executive/Non Independent Seication
. . . . ; Mr. Hassan |brahim Saeed Al- Chairman | Master of 1991- up to date Managing Partner at Nabulsi and Amad
2 Tamkeen Leasing Company Private limited Shareholding | Non-executive/Non Independent Amad I I Business compaL;F;/ ging o
: vate imi - - Administration | 5009 9013 - Member of A Chamber of C
3 Tamkeen Leasing Company Private limited Shareholding | Non-executive/Non Independent (MBAJ- USA - - Member ol Amman Lhamber of Lommerce.
2011 - 2013 - Member of Amman Municipality council .
) ) ) Member of Jordan Strategy Forum.
(Executive, non-executive/ Independent, non- independent ) Member of Jordanian Businessmen Association.
Member of the board of directors of the International
D- The Executive Management: Arbitration

Chamber (Jordan).

) Mr. Khaled Mohammed Hashem | Member Master of Member of the Board of Directors of the Jordanian
Name Title Al Saqqaf Law Microfinance

Company “Tamweelcom” since 2010.

Mr. Raad Munir Abdul Rahim Abu Rassa’ General Manager Member of the Board of Trustees of Kings Academy since
10/2022.

Mr. Waleed Moh'd Hasan Al Zboon Financial & Administration Manager Member of the Board of Directors of the American-
Jordanian Chambers of Commerce since 3/2022.

Mr. Sameh Nour Eddin Nimer Yaish Credit Manager Member of the Board of Directors of King Abdullah
Center for Design and Development, from 2012 until 2017

Mr. Ass’ad Mohammad Ass’ad Al-Khamaysah Branches & Sales Manager «previously».

Member of the Board of Directors of the Kadbi Investment
Group (KIG) from 2014 until 6/2019 « previously».

G- Membership of the Board of Directors held by a member of the Board of Directors in the

Shareholding companies: Mr. Awni Mah’d Diab A'mar Member Master of 15-02-1997-up to date Executive director/Invest Bank-

Banking and | Subsidiaries Department.
financial

Name of the Committee member | Title Name of the Shareholding Company SCieUCf_S_

: . . . specializing

Tamkeen Leasing Company Chairman - Member of the Board of Directors of the United in banking

represented by Cable Factories Company

Mr. Jamal M. F Fariz - Member of the Board of Directors of the

Petroleum Refinery Company . . L .
T- Name of chairman & members of Remuneration and Nomination, Governance, Risk
Management & Compliance Committees:

No one of the other Board members held a membership in any Board of Directors in shareholding

companies . * Risk Management & Compliance Committee:

W- Corporate Governance Officer: Ms. Dana Nazmi Moh'd Ahmad.
Name of the Committee member Title

Z- Committees of the Board of Directors: Mr. Khaled Mohammed Hashem Al Saqqaf Chairman
In order to preserve the company from any risks, the Board of Directors has established several .
) ) T } i Tamkeen Leasing Company Member
committees, The tasks have been defined and distributed among these committees to assist the Board represented by Mr. Awni Mah'd Diab A'mar
of Directors in covering all the functions and activities of the Company. The Board of Directors shall be . : Member
) - . . Tamkeen Leasing Company represented by Mr. Jamal M. F Fariz
responsible for all activities of these committees. Names of the committees as follows:

Number | Name of the Committee e Remuneration and Nomination Committee:

. N . . Chai
2 Remuneration and Nomination Committee Mr. Hassan Ibrahim Saeed Al-Amad airman
. Mr. Khaled Mohammed Hashem Al Saqqaf Member
3 Governance Committee
] ] Tamkeen Leasing Company represented by Mr. Jamal M. F | Member
4 Audit Committee Fariz
5 Executive Committee of Facilities and Credit Processing
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e Governance Committee:

Name of the Committee member Title

Mr. Khaled Mohammed Hashem Al Saqqaf Chairman
Mr. Hassan |Ibrahim Saeed Al-Amad Member
Tamkeen Leasing Company represented by Member
Mr. Abdel-Qader Mohammad Abdel-Qader Shahwan

Y- number of meetings of each of the committees, with a statement of the members
present

1- Risk Management & Compliance Committee:

The Risk Management & Compliance Committee consists of 3 members of the Board of
Directors, which are responsible for implementing and reviewing the Risk Management
policies for the company & to ensure full compliance with the instructions, regulations and
policies that govern the company’s business.

In 2023 the Risk Management & Compliance Committee held 5 meetings:

Name of the Committee Meeting 1 Meeting 2 Meeting 3 Meeting 4 Meeting 5
member 14/3/2023 30/5/2023 3/8/2023 26/11/2023 13/12/2023
From 01/01/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
Mr. Khaled Mohammed Hashem Until 06/08/2023
Al Saqqaf From 06/09/2023
Until 31/12/2023
Tamkeen Leasing Company From 01/01/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
represented by Until 06/08/2023
Mr. Awni Mah’d Diab A'mar From 06/09/2023
Until 31/12/2023
From 01/01/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
Tamkeen Leasing Company Until 06/08/2023

represented by Mr. Jamal M. F Fariz | From 06/09/2023
Until 31/12/2023

2- Remuneration and Nomination Committee:

The Remunerationand Nomination Committee consists of 3 members of the Board of Directors,
provided that one of them shall have the experience to ensure that the committee performs its
functionsefficiently.

The committee reviews the general objectives of the company and recommends the appropriate
rewards for the employees. It also takes care of developing the programs and plans to
evaluate the performance and proposed bonuses and make recommendations to the Board
of Directors regarding the incentives. In 2023, the Remuneration and Nomination committee
held 3 meetings:

Meeting 1 Meeting 2 Meeting3

Name of the Committee member/Title

23/3/2023 | 3/8/2023 3/9/2023
. Starting of 1/1/2023  Until 6/9/2023 Present Present Present
Mr. Hassan [brahim Saeed Al-Amad | o i 0 o 6/9/2023  Until 31/12/2023
Mr. Khaled Mohammed Hashem Al Starting of 1/1/2023  Until 6/9/2023 Present Present Present
Saqqaf Starting of 6/9/2023  Until 31/12/2023
Ig”;ggg:ttgabs'”g Company Starting of 1/1/2023  Until 6/9/2023 | Fresent | Present Present
P y Starting of 6/9/2023  Until 31/12/2023
Mr. Jamal M. F Fariz

3- Governance Committee:

The Governance Committee consists of 3 members of the Board of Directors, which are
responsible for implementing policies and procedures to apply the corporate governance
regulations in order to achieve the highest governance levels and transparency to enhance
shareholders’ confidence, satisfaction and to safeguard their investments, also they are
responsible to prepare and submit the Company Governance report to the Board of Directors.
In 2023, the Governance committee held 2 meetings:

Meeting 1 Meeting 2

Name of the Committee member/Title 14/3/2023 | 3/8/2023

From 01/01/2023 Until 06/08/2023 Present Present
Mr. Khaled Mohammed Hashem Al Saqqaf From 06/09/2023 Until 31/12/2023
Mr. Hassan |Ibrahim Saeed Al-Amad From 01/01/2023 Until 06/08/2023 Present Present
From 06/09/2023 Until 31/12/2023
Tamkeen Leasing Company represented by From 01/01/2023 Until 06/08/2023 Present Present
Mr. Abdel-Qader Mohammad From 06/09/2023 Until 31/12/2023
Abdel-Qader Shahwan

4. Audit Committee:

The Committee consists of 3 members of the Board of Directors, which are responsible for
overseeing the efficiency and integrity of accounting, auditing and any other similar functions
that the company conducts.

The Committeereviewsandevaluatesthe qualitativeaspectsoffinancialreports,the mechanism
of business management, as well as the important role of supervising the application of legal
and ethical standards. The Committee is directly responsible for the appointment and oversight
of the Independent External Auditor.

In 2023 the Audit committee held 9 meetings:

Name of the Meeting1 | Meeting2 | Meeting3 | Meeting4 | Meeting 5 Meeting 6 | Meeting 7 Meeting8 | Meeting 9
Committee 2023/2/2 | 9/4/2023 | 26/4/2023 | 23/7/2023 | 10/10/2023 | 25/10/2023 | 26/11/2023 | 18/12/2023 | 26/12/2023
member
From Present Present Present Present Present Present Present Present Present
01/01/2023
Chairman Until
Mr. Hassan 06/08/2023
Ibrahim Saeed From
Al-Amad 06/09/2023
Until
31/12/2023
From Present Present Present Present Present Present Present Present Present
01/01/2023
Member i
Mr. Khaled untit
06/08/2023
Mohammed
Hashem Al From
Saqqaf 06/Q9/2023
Until
31/12/2023
From Present Present Present Present Present Present Present Present Present
Member 01/01/2023
Tamkeen Leasing | Until
Company 06/08/2023
represented by From
Mr. Awni Mah'd 06/09/2023
Diab A'mar Until
31/12/2023

K. Number of audit committee meetings with the external auditor during the year

One meeting was held with the external auditor, Price water house coopers PWC Company
during the year, without the presence of any of the executive management persons or their
representatives.

L- Number of board meetings during the year, with a statement of the attending members.
The Board of Directors held (21) meetings during the year, and the following are the attendees
for each meeting:
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Mr. Abdel-Qader

Declaration

- The Company’s Board of Directors acknowledges that there are no material issues that may
affect the Company’s continuity during the next fiscal year 2024.

- The Company’s Board of Directors acknowledges its liability towards the preparation of the
financial statements and the existence of an effective and adequate internal control system in
the Company.

Chairman

Vice-chairman

Member

Member

Member

Meeting Date of Mr. Jamal M. F Fariz Mr. Awni Mah’d Diab Mohammad Abdel- Mr. Khaled Mohammed | Mr. Hassan Ibrahim
Num Meeting A'mar Qader Shahwan Hashem Al Saqqaf Saeed Al-Amad
1 8/1/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
2 22/1/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
3 31/1/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
4 2/2/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
5 23/3/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
6 28/3/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
7 30/3/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
8 26/4/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
9 28/5/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
10 30/5/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
1 5/6/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
12 23/7/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
13 3/8/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
14 6/9/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
15 6/9/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
16 10/10/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
17 25/10/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
18 26/10/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
19 26/11/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
20 13/12/2023 Present Present Present Present Present
21 28/12/2023 Present Present Present Present Present

Vice Chairman of the Board
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Vacant Awni Mah’d Diab Abdel-Qader Khaled Mohammed Hassan Ibrahim
A'mar Mohammad Abdel- Hashem Al Saqgaf Said Al-Amad
Tamkeen Leasing Qader Shahwan
Company Tamkeen Leasing
Company
Signature: Signature: Signature: Signature:
A

We the undersigned, hereby acknowledge the authenticity, precision and comprehensiveness
of the information and data included herein.

Financial & Administration
Manager

Waleed Moh’'d Hasan Al Zboon

Vice Chairman

General Manager

Awni Mah’d Diab A'mar Raad Munir Abdul Rahim Abu

Rassa’

Signature: Signature: Signature:
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C- The annual financial statements of the
Company audited by its auditors, compared with
the previous year, which include:

BINDAR TRADE AND INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN- HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

TOGETHER WITH THE INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Shareholders Of Bindar Trade And Investment Company
(Public Shareholding Company, Ltd.)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Bindar Trade And Investment Company (the “Company”] and its
subsidiary (together the “Group”) as at 31 December 2023, and their consolidated financial performance
and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards
as amended by the Central Bank of Jordan instructions.

What we have audited
The Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’” equity for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information
and other explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

Overview

Key Audit Matter Measurement of Expected Credit Losses

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the consolidated financial statements. In particular, we considered where the
directors made subjective judgments; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that
involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of
our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including among
other matters, consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud.

We have designed the scope of the audit to perform sufficient procedures that enable us to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the Groups structure,
accounting processes, controls and business segments.

Key audit matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.



Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Measurement of Expected Credit Losses

The Group applies the Expected Credit Loss model (ECL])
on all its financial instruments measured at amortised
cost in accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
as amended by the Central Bank of Jordan instructions.

The Group exercises significant judgement and makes
a number of assumptions in developing its ECL models,
which includes probability of default computation
separately forretailand corporate portfolios, determining
loss given default and exposure at default for both funded
and unfunded exposures, forward looking adjustments,
staging criteria and movement between stages.

Fordefaulted exposures, the Group exercises judgements
to estimate the expected future cash flows related to
individual exposures, including the value of collateral.

The Group’s impairment policy under IFRS 9 as amended
by the Central Bank of Jordan Instructions is presented in
notes (2 and 4) to the consolidated financial statements,
and which is related to the differences between IFRS 9
as should be implemented and what was implemented
based on the Central Bank of Jordan instructions, and
the material accounting policies implemented when
calculating the expected credit loss.

Measurement of ECL is considered as a key audit matter
as the Group applies significant judgments and makes a
number of assumptions in the staging criteria applied to
the financial instruments as well as in developing ECL
models for calculating its impairment provisions.

We performed the following audit procedures on
the computation of the ECL included in the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023:

We assessed and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the controls over the calculation of
the excepted credit losses model.

We tested the completeness and accuracy of the data
used in the calculation of ECL.

For a sample of exposures, we checked the
appropriateness of the Group’s application of the
staging criteria.

We involved our internal specialists to assess the
following areas:

e Conceptual framework used for developing the
Group’s impairment policy in the context of
its compliance with the requirements of IFRS
9 as amended by the Central Bank of Jordan
instructions.

ECL modelling methodology and calculations used
to compute the probability of default (PD), loss
given default (LGD), and exposure at default (EAD)
for the Group’'s classes of financial instruments.
Reasonableness of the assumptions made in
developing the modelling framework including
assumptions used for estimating forward looking
scenarios and significant increase in credit risk.
Recalculation of the expected credit losses for a
sample of the impaired financial assets at each
stage.

e In addition, for the Stage 3 corporate portfolio, the appropriateness
of provisioning assumptions were independently assessed for
a sample of exposures selected on the basis of risk and the
significance of individual exposures. An independent view was
formed onthe levels of provisions recognised, based on the detailed
loan and counterparty information available in the credit file. For
the Stage 3 retail portfolio, assumptions were independently
assessed for each product category and an independent view was
formed on the levels of provisions recognised at each category

level.

e We recalculated the provision for non-performing loans in
accordance with the Central Bank of Jordan Instructions Number

(47/2009).

e We compared the expected credit loss calculated inaccordance with
IFRS 9 as amended by the Central Bank of Jordan Instructions with
the provision for expected credit losses calculated in accordance
with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan No. (47/2009)
and ensured that the Group has recorded whichever is higher.

e We assessed the consolidated financial statement disclosures
to ensure compliance with IFRS 7 and IFRS 9 as amended by
the Central Bank of Jordan Instructions. We have also ensured
completeness and accuracy of the disclosures by verifying the
information to accounting records.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information includes the Board of
DThe directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
other information included in the Group’s annual report (but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon), which is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Whenwe read the otherinformation notyet received, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we arerequiredtocommunicate the matterto those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as amended by the Central Bank of Jordan
instructions, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s consolidated financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as awhole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As partofanauditinaccordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticismthroughout the audit. We also:

¢ |ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The Group maintains proper accounting records which are consistent, in all material aspects, with the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. We recommend the General Assembly to approve
them.

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers “Jordan”

Omar Jamal Kalanzi
License No. (1015)

e L
Amman, Jordan /'é?““ “C‘co
Date ¥

J————
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BINDAR TRADE AND INVESTMENT COMPANY

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY]

AMMAN - HASHEMITE KINGDOM OF JORDAN
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Assets
Cash on hand and at banks
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Financial assets at amortised cost
Other debit balances
Investment properties, net
Asset foreclosed against defaulted loans
Right of use assets
Property and equipment, net
Deferred tax assets

Assets held for sale
Total assets

Liabilities and Shareholders’ equity
Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Bank loans

Lease liabilities

Other provisions

Income tax provision

Liabilities directly associated with assets held for
sale

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity

Authorised, subscribed and paid in capital
Net shareholders’ equity in the merged
company

Share premium

Statutory reserve

Financial assets valuation reserve
Retained earnings

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

General Manager

Note 2023 2022
JD JD

5 345,427 2,262,586
6 151,957 148,197
7 111,556,717 84,318,473
8 866,153 628,486
9 2,880,959 2,853,444
10 1,741,444 1,320,261
11 231,598 127,294
12 189,437 230,272
16 3,102,885 2,726,128
121,066,577 94,615,141
25 145,188 145,229
121,211,765 94,760,370
13 1,361,705 576,860
14 71,737,384 52,160,520
11 249,653 141,844
15 143,709 101,714
16 1,889,399 1,203,419
75,381,850 54,184,357
25 335 2,360
75,382,185 54,186,717
17 20,000,000 20,000,000
17 5,205,677 -
1,602 1,602
17 4,590,604 3,880,088
16,904 13,144
16,014,793 16,678,819
45,829,580 40,573,653
121,211,765 94,760,370

Finance Director

The attached notes from 1 to 25 are an integral part of these consolidation financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME

Revenues and commissions from commercial
financing and murabaha

Other operating revenue

Other income

Dividends Income

Total revenues

Salaries, wages and employees’ benefits
Other expenses

Depreciation of investment properties
Depreciation of property and equipment
Depreciation of right of use assets

Provision of expected credit losses of financial
assets at amortised cost

Expected credit loss of other debit balances
Other provisions

Reversal from the impairment of investment
properties provision

Finance expense

Total expenses

Operating profit

Gain from acquisition a subsidiary

Profit for the year before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income items that
will not be reclassified to profit or loss in
:subsequent periods

Net Change in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per share from
Profit of the year

Note

18

19
20

12
11

16

23

2023 2022
JD JD
11,976,945 9,460,952
3,203,272 1,945,162
31,765 70,410
6,249 6,292
15,218,231 11,482,816
(1,659,265) (1,516,190)
(1,118,357) (1,103,234)
(6,800) (6,800)
(72,393) (73,263)
(99,954) (100,092)
(248,561) 904,619
(73,310) (421)
(41,995) (36,957)
34,315 -
(4,858,868) (3,224,768)
(8,145,188) (5,157,106)
7,073,043 6,325,710
- 3,596,992
7,073,043 9,922,702
(1,820,876) (1,761,494)
5,252,167 8,161,208
3,760 1,537
5,255,927 8,162,745
Fils/JD Fils/JD
0,263 0,408

The attached notes from 1 to 25 are an integral part of these consolidation financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Net
shareholders’

Financial

Subscribed

Total
shareholders’

equity in
the merged

assets
valuation
reserve

Retained

Share Statutory

premium

and paid in

company *earnings equity

reserve

capital

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

JD

2023

40,573,653

16,678,819

13,144

3,880,088

1,602

20,000,000

Balance as of 1 January 2023

5,252,167

5,252,167

Profit for the year

3,760
5,255,927

3,760

Change in financial assets valuation reserve

5,252,167

3,760

Total comprehensive income for the year

Effect of the merger on net shareholders’

equity in the merged company

(5,205,677)

5,205,677

(710,516)
16,014,793

710,516
4,590,604

Transfers to Statutory Reserve

45,829,580

5,205,677

16,904

1,602

20,000,000

Balance as of 31 December 2023

2022

32,410,908
8,161,208

8,930,210
8,161,208

11,607

3,467,489

1,602

20,000,000

Balance as of 1 January 2022

Profit for the year

1,537
8,162,745

1,537
1,537

Change in financial assets valuation reserve

8,161,208

Total comprehensive income for the year

(412,599)
16,678,819

412,599
3,880,088

Transfers to Statutory Reserve

40,573,653

13,144

1,602

20,000,000

Balance as of 31 December 2022

* Use of the credit balance of the valuation reserve of financial assets through other comprehensive income is restricted in accordance with the instructions

of the Central Bank of Jordan and Jordan Securities Commission.

**Retained earnings include an amount of JD 3,102,885 as of 31 December 2023 (2022: JD 2,726,128) restricted against deferred tax assets.

The attached notes from 1 to 25 are an integral part of these consolidation financial statements



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities
Profit before income tax
:Adjustment
Depreciation of property and equipment
Depreciation of right of use assets
Depreciation on investment properties
Provision expected credit losses of financial assets at am-
ortised cost
Expected credit loss of other debit balances
Gains from acquisition of a subsidiary
Gains from selling fixed assets
Gain from selling assets seized
Reversal of impairment of investment in properties
Other provisions
Finance expenses
Changes in working capital
Financial assets at amortised cost
Assets and Liabilities held for sale
Other debit balances
Trade and other payables
Net cash flows From operating activities before in-
come tax paid
Income tax paid
Paid from Litigation Provision
Net cash flows used in operating activities

Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceed from selling property and equipment
Net cash flow used in purchase a subsidiary
Proceeds from sale of assets foreclosed against default-
ed loans
Net cash flows used in investing activities

Financing activities
Bank loans
Bonds
Finance costs paid
Payments of leased liabilities
Dividends paid
Net cash flows generated from financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
,Cash and cash equivalents as of 1 January
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December

Non-cash transactions

Transferred from financial assets at amortised cost to assets fore-

closed against defaulted loans
Additions to right of use assets / lease liabilities

Note 2023 2022
JD JD
7,073,043 9,922,702
72,393 73,263
99,954 100,092
6,800 6,800
7 248,561 (904,619)
73,310 421
- (3,596,992)
(795) (12,000)
(30,970) (58,410)
9 (34,315) -
41,995 36,957
4,858,868 3,224,768
(28,057,036) (8,981,551)
(1,984) (142,869)
(310,977) (40,808)
784,912 307,374
(15,176,241) (64,872)
17 (1,511,653) (1,401,973)
- (59,616)
(16,687,894)  (1,526,461)
12 (34,434) (16,361)
3,671 12,533
- (3,438,366)
180,018 633,915
149,255 (2,808,279)
19,576,864 12,400,769
- (3,000,000)
(4,841,192) (3,214,075)
11 (114,125) (110,846)
(67) (1,935)
14,621,480 6,073,913
(1,917,159) 1,739,173
5 2,262,586 523,413
345,427 2,262,586
_ (570231) _  (220,887)
__(204,258) -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) General Information

The attached notes from 1 to 25 are an integral part of these consolidation financial statements
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Bindar Trade and Investment Company was incorporated in accordance with Companies Law no. (22)
of 1997 on 17 April 2000 as a limited liability company under No. (6099) with a share capital of JD
1,000,000 million. The Company was changed to a public shareholding company on 9 August 2004
under No. (351) with a share capital of JD 13,000,000. The Company is registered in the Hashemite
Kingdom of Jordan. The General Assembly of the Company decided in its extraordinary meeting held
on 15 March 2008 to increase the share capital from JD 13,000,000 to JD 20,000,000 and completed the
share capital increase procedures during 2008.The address of the Company is Al Madinah Al Munawara
Street, P.0. Box 1921, Amman 11821, the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan.

The main objectives of the Company and its subsidiary are:

- To finance durable consumer goods such as cars, vehicles, furniture, electrical appliances, kitchens,
as well as medical and industrial equipment.

- To acquire movable and immovable funds to achieve the Company’s objectives including owning
names, trademarks and agencies.

- To establish other branches for the Company inside and outside the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan.

- To Borrow and issue loan notes of any kind.

- To Carry out finance leasing according to the provisions of Islamic Sharia.

- To finance property including lands, buildings and constructions, as well as contractors’ contracts in
various economic sectors.

- Selling land and real state

The Company’s shares are listed in Amman Stock Exchange.

The address of the Company is Al Madinah Al Munawara Street, P.0. Box ]1921(, Amman ]11821(, the
Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan.

The Company is 99.01% owned by Tamkeen Leasing Company (Parent Company) and Invest Bank -
Public Shareholding Limited Company is the Ultimate Parent Company. The Company’s financials
statements are consolidated with the Ultimate Parent Company’s consolidated financial statements.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements were approved by the board of directors 01

February 2024.

(2) Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2-1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the IFRS Accounting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the interpretations issued by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee, which are adopted by the International
Accounting Standards Board, as amended by the Central Bank of Jordan’s instructions.

The main differences between the IFRSs as they shall be applied and what has been approved by the
Central Bank of Jordan are the following:

1- Some items are classified and presented in the consolidated statement of financial position,

83

BINDAR
| [ S—




consolidated statement of income and the consolidated statement of cash flows and the related
disclosure, such as credit facilities, interest in suspense, expected credit losses, Assets foreclosed
against defaulted loans, fair value levels, segments classification and disclosures related to risks
and others, in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank of Jordan, its instructions and
circulated guidance which might not include all the requirements of IFRS such as IFRS 7, 9 and 13.

2- Provisions for expected credit losses are formed in accordance with the instructions of the Central
Bank of Jordan (No. 13/ 2018) “Application of the IFRS (9)" dated 6 June 2018. The significant
differences are as follows:

a) Debt instruments issued or guaranteed by the Jordanian government are excluded, so that credit
exposures are treated and guaranteed by the Jordanian government without credit loss.

b) When calculating credit losses against credit exposures, the calculation results are compared
according to IFRS (9) under the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan No. (2009/47) of 10
December 2009 for each stage separately and the stricter results are booked.

According to the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan No. (47/2009) issued on 10 December 2009
regarding the classification of credit facilities and the calculation of the impairment provisions, credit
facilities were classified into the following categories:

Low risk credit facilities, which do not require any provisions:
These are credit facilities that have any of the following characteristics:

1- Facilities granted and guaranteed by the Jordanian government, as well as to the governments of
countries in which Jordanian banks have branches, provided that these facilities are granted in the
same currency of the host country.

2- Cash Guaranteed by (100%] of the outstanding balance at any time.

3- Facilities guaranteed with an acceptable bank guarantee at (100%).

Acceptable risk credit facilities, which do not require provision:
These are credit facilities that have any of the following characteristics:

1- Strong financial positions and adequate cash flows.

2- Legally documented and well covered by acceptable collaterals.

3- Good alternative cash resources for repayment.

4- Active movement of the relative account and timely payment of principal and interest
5- Competent management of the obligor.

Credit facilities listed under the watch-list (requiring special attention) which
impairment allowances for are calculated within a range of (1.5% - 15%]:

These are credit facilities that have any of the following characteristics:

1- The existence of past dues of principal and/or interest for a year exceeding (60) days but less than
(90) days.

2- Overdraft exceeding the approved limit by (10%) or more for a year exceeding (60) days but less than
(90) days.

3- Credit facilities which were previously classified as non-performing loans, and then reclassified as
performing loans according to rescheduling

4- Acceptable risk credit facilities which have been restructured twice within 12 months.

5- Credit facilities that are more than (60) days old and less than (90) days have passed since their
expiry date and have not been renewed.

This is in addition to other conditions detailed in the instructions.

Non-performing credit facilities:
The credit facilities that have any of the following characteristics:
1- The maturity of the credit facilities or of one of its instalments, irregularity of repaying of principal

and/or interest of credit facilities and / or dormant overdraft have been past due for the following
years:

The percentage of the

Classification Number of past due days provision for the first year

Sub-standard credit facilities days (179) — (90) 25%
Doubtful credit facilities days (359) — (180) 50%
Bad debt/loss credit facilities days and more (360) 100%

2- Overdraft facilities exceeding approved limits by (10%) or more for a year of (90) days or more.

3- Credit facilities which have matured and become invalid for a year of (90) days or more and have not
been renewed.

4- Credit facilities extended to any obligor who went bankrupt, or to companies which were subjected
to liquidation.

5- Credit facilities that were restructured three times within a year.

6- Overdrawn current and on demand accounts for a year of (90) days or more

7- The value of guarantees paid on behalf of the clients and were not credited to their accounts with
past due of (90) days or more.

The expected credit losses provision against credit facilities is calculated in accordance with the 2009/47
instructions for this category of facilities according to the above ratios for the values not covered by
guarantees during the first year, while the allocation of the covered amount is completed at 25% and
over four years.

Interest and commissions are suspended on non-performing credit facilities and facilities classified
within the third stage in accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan.

Assets that have been reverted to the Company appear in the consolidated statement of financial
position within assets foreclosed against defaulted loans at the amount of which they were reverted to
the Company or the fair value, whichever is lower, and are reassessed on the date of the consolidated
financial statements individually. Any impairment in their value is recorded as a loss in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the increase is not recorded as revenue. The subsequent increase is
recorded in consolidated statement of comprehensive income to the extent that it does not exceed the
value of the decrease that was recorded previously.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Jordanian Dinars (JDJ, which represents the
Group’s financial and presentation currency.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
requires the use of important and specific accounting estimates, as well as requiring management to
express an opinion on the application of the company’s accounting policies The areas that involve a high
degree of diligence or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are fundamental to the
consolidated financial statements have been disclosed in clarification number (4).

2-2 Basis of consolidation of Consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and the
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companies under its control (its subsidiaries), control is achieved when the Company:

e Has the ability to control the subsidiaries;
e exposed, or has right, to variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiaries;
e Has the ability to use its power to influence the returns of the subsidiaries.

The Companywill re-estimate whetheritcontrols the subsidiaries or notif the facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes on one or more of the control points referred to above.

In the event that the Company’s voting rights fall below the majority of voting rights in any of the
subsidiaries, it will have the power to control when voting rights are sufficient to give the Company the
ability to unilaterally direct the related subsidiary activities. The Company takes into account all facts
and circumstances when estimating whether the Company has voting rights in the investee that are
sufficient to give it the ability to control or not. These facts and circumstances include:

e The volume of voting rights the Company has in relation to the number and distribution of other
voting rights;

e Potential voting rights held by the Company and any other voting rights holders or parties;

e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e Any additional facts and circumstances indicating that the Company has, or does not have, a current
responsibility to direct the relevant activities at the time the required decisions are taken, including
how to vote in meetings of previous general assembly’'s meetings.

The subsidiary is consolidated when the Company controls the subsidiary and is deconsolidated when
the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, the results of operations of subsidiaries
acquired or excluded during the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the date on which control is achieved until the date the control of the subsidiary is lost.

Profits and losses and each item of the comprehensive income are distributed to the owners in the
entity and the non-controlling interest, the comprehensive income for the subsidiaries belonging to the
owners in the entity and the non-controlling share is distributed even if this distribution will lead to a
deficit in the balance of the non-controlling interest.

Adjustments are made to the financial statements of the subsidiaries, when required, to align their
accounting policies with those used by the Company.

Non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries are determined separately from the Company’s equity
in these entities. The non-controlling interests of the shareholders currently present in the equity
granted to their owners with a proportionate share of the net assets upon liquidation may be measured
initially at fair value or by the proportionate share of non-controlling interests in the fair value of the
identifiable net purchase amount of assets. The measurement is selected on an acquisition basis.
Other non-controlling interests are initially measured at fair value. After acquisition, the carrying
value of non-controlling interests is the value of these interests upon initial recognition, in addition
to the non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income
is attributable to the non-controlling interests even if that results in a deficit in the non-controlling
interests’ balance.

Changes in the Company’s interest in subsidiaries that do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The present value of the Company’s and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect changes in their relative shares in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Company loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss resulting from the disposal is
calculated in the statement of profit or loss, with the difference between (1) the total fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any remaining shares and (2] the present value of the

assets [(including goodwill], less the liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

All amounts previously recognised in the other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed of the assets or liabilities related to the
subsidiary.

The fair value of the investment that is held in the previous subsidiary at the date of loss of control
is considered to be the fair value upon initial recognition of subsequent accounting under IFRS (9)

“Financial instruments” when this standard applies, or the cost of initial recognition of investment in
an associate or a joint venture.

The Company has the following subsidiaries:

31 December 2023:

Paid in Ownership Nature of Date of
Name of the Company capital Percentage  operations Location acquisition
JD
Roboua Al Sharq Real 50,000 100% Sale of Jordan 28 March
Estate Company Company 2006
owned land
and real
estate
Rakeen Real Estate 30,000 100% Sale of Jordan 11 March
Company Company 2010
owned land
and
real estate
Entities under liquidation:
Bindar Finance Leasing 1,000,000 100% Finance Jordan 29
Company* Lease September
2013
31 December 2022:
Name of the Company Pa'q n Ownership Natur&_a of Location Dat_e_o_f
capital Percentage operations acquisition
JD
Sale of
Company
Roboua Al Sharq Real 50,000 100%  ownedland  Jordan  2oMareh
Estate Company 2006
and real
estate
Sale of
Company
Rakeen Real Estate 30,000 100%  ownedland  Jordan | March
Company 2010
and
real estate
. . . . 29
Bindar Finance Leasing 1,000,000 100% Finance Jordan September
Company Lease 2013
Summit Auto Trade o , . 8 March
Facilities™* 2,130,000 100% Financing Jordan 2022
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*The Company’s general assembly decided in its extraordinary meeting held on 8 March 2023 to
voluntarily liquidate the Company. A liquidator has been appointed for the Company to liquidate the
Company voluntarily in accordance with the companies’ law. As a result, the Company did not conduct
any commercial activity during the year 2023. Liquidation procedures have not been completed as of the
date of the Consolidated financial statements, accordingly, it has been excluded from the Consolidated
financial statements of the Group whereas its balances are reported within assets and liabilities held
for sale.

**Based on the decision of the general assembly of Bindar Trading and Investment Company in its
extraordinary meeting held on 4 January 2022, it was approved to purchase all the shares of (Summit
Auto Trade Facilities) ,with a value of JD 3,483,366, as the fair value of the acquired net assets amounted
to JD 7,035,358, which resulted in a profit in the amount of JD 3,596,992. The central bank of Jordan
approved the acquisition process according to their letter No.(10/2/16687) on 31 October 2021. The
acquisition of the company was completed during the first quarter of 2022.

Based onthe decision of the extraordinary general assembly held on 23 November 2022, it was approved
to merge Summit Auto Trade Facilities Company with Bindar Trading and Investment Company
whereas Bindar Trading and Investment Company becomes the merging Company and Summit Auto
Trade Facilities Company becomes the merged Company. The merger procedures were completed
on 6 September 2023, it was approved to use the opening balances resulting from the merger as of 1
January 2023.

2-3 Changes in Accounting Policies

(A) New and amended standards and interpretations issued and adopted by the Group
in the financial year beginning on 1 January 2023

Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2:

The IASB amended IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to require entities
to disclose their material rather than their significant accounting policies.

The amendments define what is ‘material accounting policy information’ (being
information that, when considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements) and explain how to identify when accounting
policy information is material. They further clarify that immaterial accounting
policy information does not need to be disclosed. If it is disclosed, it should not
obscure material accounting information. To support this amendment, the IASB
also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 “Making Materiality Judgements to
provide guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures”.

1 January
2023

Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to IAS 8:

The amendment to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors clarifies how companies should distinguish changes in accounting
policies from changes in accounting estimates. The distinction is important, because
changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively to future transactions
and other future events, whereas changes in accounting policies are generally
applied retrospectively to past transactions and other past events as well as the
current period.

1 January
2023

Key requirements Effect date
IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” - IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 as 1 January
replacement for IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. It requires a current measurement 2023

model where estimates are remeasured in each reporting period. Contracts are
measured using the building blocks of:

* discounted probability-weighted cash flows

« an explicit risk adjustment, and ¢« a contractual service margin (CSM)
representing the unearned profit of the contract which is recognised as revenue
over the coverage period.

The standard allows a choice between recognising changes in discount rates
either in the statement of profit or loss or directly in other comprehensive income.
The choice is likely to reflect how insurers account for their financial assets under
IFRS 9.

An optional, simplified premium allocation approach is permitted for the liability for
the remaining coverage for eligible groups of insurance contracts, which are often
written by non-life insurers.

Targeted amendments made in July 2020 aimed to ease the implementation

of the standard by reducing implementation costs and making it easier for
entities to explain the results from applying IFRS 17 to investors and others.The
amendments also deferred the application date of IFRS 17 to 1 January 2023.

Further amendments made in December 2021 added a transition option that
permits an entity to apply an optional classification overlay in the comparative
period(s) presented on initial application of IFRS 17.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction — Amendments to IAS 12:

The amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes require companies to recognise deferred
tax on transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable
and deductible temporary differences, and will require the recognition of additional

deferred tax assets and liabilities.

The amendment should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. In addition, entities should
recognise deferred tax assets (to the extent that it is probable that they can be
utilised) and deferred tax liabilities at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with:

* right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and

» decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, and the corresponding
amounts recognised as part of the cost of the related assets.

The cumulative effect of recognising these adjustments is recognised in the
opening balance of retained earnings, or another component of equity, as
appropriate.

IAS 12 did not previously address how to account for the tax effects of on balance
sheet leases and similar transactions and various approaches were considered
acceptable. Some entities may have already accounted for such transactions
consistent with the new requirements. These entities will not be affected by the
amendments.

1 January
2023




OECD Pillar Two Rules:

In December 2021, the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development
(OECD) released the Pillar Two model rules (the Global AntiBase Erosion
Proposal, or ‘GloBE’) to reform international corporate taxation. Large multinational
enterprises within the scope of the rules are required to calculate their GIoBE
effective tax rate for each jurisdiction where they operate. They will be liable to

pay a top-up tax for the difference between their GIoBE effective tax rate per
jurisdiction and the 15% minimum rate.

In May 2023, the IASB made narrow-scope amendments to IAS 12 which provide
a temporary relief from the requirement to recognise and disclose deferred taxes
arising from enacted or substantively enacted tax law that implements the Pillar
Two model rules, including tax law that implements qualified domestic minimum
top-up taxes described in those rules.

The amendments also require affected companies to disclose:

« the fact that they have applied the exception to recognising and disclosing
information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income
taxes

« their current tax expense (if any) related to the Pillar Two income taxes, and *
during the period between the legislation being enacted or substantially enacted
and the legislation becoming effective, known or reasonably estimable information
that would help users of financial statements to understand an entity’s exposure
to Pillar Two income taxes arising from that legislation. If this information is

not known or reasonably estimable, entities are instead required to disclose a
statement to that effect and information about their progress in assessing the
exposure.

**The amendments must be applied immediately, subject to any local
endorsement process, and retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. However, the disclosures
about the known or reasonably estimable exposure to Pillar Two income taxes are
only required for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and do not need to be made in interim financial reports for interim periods ending
on or before 31 December 2023.

1 January
2023

(B) The Group has not yet applied the following new standards, amendments and
interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Key requirements

Effect date

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current — Amendments

to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants — Amendments to IAS

1 - Amendments made to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements in 2020
and 2022 clarified that liabilities are classified as either current or noncurrent,
depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period. Classification
is unaffected by the entity’s expectations or events after the reporting date

(e.g. the receipt of a waiver or a breach of covenant). Covenants of loan
arrangements will not affect classification of a liability as current or non-current
at the reporting date if the entity must only comply with the covenants after the
reporting date. However, if the entity must comply with a covenant either before
or at the reporting date, this will affect the classification as current or non-current
even if the covenant is only tested for compliance after the reporting date. The
amendments require disclosures if an entity classifies a liability as noncurrent
and that liability is subject to covenants that the entity must comply with within

12 months of the reporting date. The disclosures include: « the carrying amount
of the liability * information about the covenants, and ¢ facts and circumstances, if
any, that indicate that the entity may have difficulty complying with the covenants.
The amendments also clarify what IAS 1 means when it refers to the ‘settlement’
of a liability. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result
in its settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own equity instrument can only be
ignored for the purpose of classifying the liability as current or non-current if the
entity classifies the option as an equity instrument. However, conversion options
that are classified as a liability must be considered when determining the current/
non-current classification of a convertible note.

The amendments must be applied retrospectively in accordance with the normal
requirements in IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors. Special transitional rules apply if an entity had early adopted the 2020
amendments regarding the classification of liabilities as current or non-current.

1 January
2024

The implementation of the above standards did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback — Amendments to IFRS 16:

In September 2022, the IASB finalised narrow-scope amendments to the
requirements for sale and leaseback transactions in IFRS 16 Leases which
explain how an entity accounts for a sale and leaseback after the date of the
transaction.

The amendments specify that, in measuring the lease liability subsequent to the
sale and leaseback, the seller-lessee determines ‘lease payments’ and ‘revised
lease payments’ in a way that does not result in the seller lessee recognising any
amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use that it retains. This could
particularly impact sale and leaseback transactions where the lease payments
include variable payments that do not depend on an index or a rate

1 January
2024




Supplier finance arrangements — Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7: 1 January The management is still in the process of evaluating the impact of these new amendments on the
| 2024 Group’s consolidated financial statements, and it believes that there will be no significant impact on the
The IASB has issued new disclosure requirements about supplier financing consolidated financial statements when they are implemented. _
arrangements (‘SFAs’), after feedback to an IFRS Interpretations Committee There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material
agenda decision highlighted that the information required by IAS 7 Statement of impact on the Group in the .current year starting 1 January 2023 or future reporting periods and on
Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: foreseeable future transactions.
Disclosures falls short of meeting user information needs. The objective of the 2-4 Foreign currency translation
new disclosures is to provide information about SFAs that enables investors
to assess the effects on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and the exposure to (A) Operating currency and presentation currency of financial statements
liquidity risk. The new disclosures include information about the following:
-~ Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
The terms and conditions of SFAs. environment in which the Company operates (“the functional currency”). These financial statements
are presented in Jordanian Dinar, which is considered the operating currency and the currency used to
items in which those liabilities are presented.
B) Operations and balances
2.The carrying amount of the financial liabilities in (b) for which suppliers have (B) P
already received payment from the finance providers. Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
3.The range of payment due dates for both the financial liabilities that are part of prevailing at th_e date} of the transactions. Assets and llab'|l|t|e§ denommatgq in fore'|gn currencies at
SFAs. and comparable trade pavables that are not part of such arrangements the end of the financial year are translated into the Jordanian Dinar at prevailing period-end exchange
' P pay P 9 ' rates. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from that are recognised in the statement of
4. Non-cash changes in the carrying amounts of financial liabilities in (b). comprehensive income in the other income account.
5. Access to SFA facilities and concentration of liquidity risk with finance 2-5 Investment properties
providers.
The IASB has provided transitional relief by not requiring comparative Investment properties are properties held for rental revenue and/or capital appreciation including
information in the first year, and also not requiring disclosure of specified opening properties under construction for these purposes. Investment properties are initially measured at
balances. Further, the required disclosures are only applicable for annual periods cost, including transaction costs. The cost includes expenses of replacing a portion of the current
during the first year of application. Therefore, the earliest that the new disclosures investment property on the date that those expenses are incurred, provided that the necessary
will have to be provided is in annual financial reports for December 2024 year- recognition requirements are met, and it does not include daily expenses for investment property
ends, unless an entity has a financial year of less than 12 months. services. Subsequent to the initial recognition, investment properties are recognized at fair value which
P . . . . reflects the market conditions at the reporting date.
Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint n/a
venture — Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Profits or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in the
o ) profit or loss in their related accounting period.
The IASB has made limited scope amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. 2-6 Property and equipment
The ?mber][dments clarify ;the acdc?rl]mting tregtrtnent fgr.s?les (:r con_’lt_rri]bution ?_f The Property and equipment are recorded at their historical cost minus accumulated depreciation The
assets between an investor and their associates or joint ventures. They contirm historical cost includes expenses related to the acquisition of these properties and equipment.
that the accounting treatment depends on whether the nonmonetary assets sold
i)Fnggn?t’r:;)ut(.ed to eg asspc?te or joint venture constitute a‘business’ (as defined in Subsequent costs are included in the value of the assets or recognized as separate assets when it is
usiness Combinations). probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the
. . ] . . item can be measured reliably The carrying amount of the replaced item is derecognized All repair and
Where theT non-monetary assets constlf[ute.a business, the investor will recognise maintenance expenses are recognized when incurred in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
the full gain or loss on the sale or contribution of assets. If the assets do not meet income.
the definition of a business, the gain or loss is recognised by the investor only to
the extent of the other mvestpr’s interests in the associate or joint venture. The Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost over the useful life of the
amendments apply prospectively. properties and equipment The main useful lives used for this purpose are as follows:
** In December 2015, the IASB decided to defer the application date of this
amendment until such time as the IASB has finalised its research project on the
equity method.
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Depreciation rate

Years
Supplies and equipment 5
Furniture ,decorations and key money 8
Computers 5
Transportation equipment 6-7
Office equipment 6-7

The remaining value and productive life of assets are reviewed and adjusted, if necessary, at the end of
each financial period When the amount that can be recovered from any of the assets and equipment is
less than its net book value, its value is reduced to the recoverable amount and the impairment loss is
recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Gains and losses on disposals of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2-7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely
independent cash inflows (cash-generating units). Prior impairments of non-financial assets are
reviewed for possible reversal at each reporting date.

2-8 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

These financial assets represent investments in equity instruments for the purpose of holding them
for the long term.

These assets are recorded at fair value plus acquisition expenses upon purchase and are subsequently
reassessed at fair value, and the change in fair value appears in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and comprehensive income and within the consolidated equity, including the change in fair
value resulting from the differences in conversion of non-monetary assets items in foreign currencies.
And in the event of selling these assets or part of them, the resulting profits or losses are taken in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and within the consolidated equity, and the balance of the
reserves valuation of the sold financial assets is transferred directly to the retained earnings and not
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

These assets are not subject to an impairment test.

Dividend is recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2-9 Asset for closed against defaulted loans

The assets that have been foreclosed against defaulted loans are shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position under the item “Asset foreclosed against defaulted loans” with the value to
the company or the fair value whichever is lower. It is re-evaluated at fair value individually. Or the
consolidated loss, and the increase is not recognized as revenue. The subsequent increase is credited
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent that it does not exceed the previously
recognized impairment value.

2-10 Financial assets at amortized cost

These are the financial assets that the Group’s management aims to maintain in accordance with its
business model to collect contractual cash flows, which are represented by payments of principal and

interest on the balance of outstanding debt.

The financial assets are proven at cost plus acquisition expenses, and the premium/discount is
extinguished using the effective interest method, whether on or for interest account, and any allowances
resulting from the decrease in their value that lead to the inability to recover the asset or part of it
appear later in the unified income statement and later appear at the extinguished cost after reducing
it by impairment losses.

The impairment of financial assets at amortized cost represents the difference between the value
recognized in the records and the present value of the expected cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

2-11 Financial Instruments

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and loans and
advances are recognized to customers if credited to the clients” account.

Assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets and liabilities are added to or deducted
from the fair value of financial assets or liabilities, as appropriate, at initial recognition Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or liabilities at fair value are recognized
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income directly.

If the transaction price differs from the fair value at initial recognition, the group treats this difference
as follows:

e |f fair value is established at a specified price in an active market for identical assets or liabilities
or based on a valuation technique that uses only observable inputs, it recognizes the profit or loss
difference upon initial recognition [ie, the first day’s profit or loss);

* In all other cases, fair value is adjusted to reflect the transaction price [ie, the first day’s profit or loss
will be deferred by including it in the initial book value of the asset or liability)

e Afterinitialrecognition, deferred profitor loss will be taken to consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on a rational basis, only to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including time)
that market participants would consider when pricing the asset or liability or when derecognizing
that instrument.

Initial recognition

All financial assets are recognized at the date of trading when buying or selling a financial asset under
a contract that requires the delivery of the financial asset within a specified time frame by the relevant
market, and is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets
classified at fair value in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Transaction costs
directly related to the acquisition of financial assets classified at fair value are recognized through
profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Subsequent measurement

Requires measuring all recognized financial assets that fall within the scope of International Financial
Reporting Standard (9) subsequently at amortized cost or fair value based on the entity’s business
model for managing financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
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assets Specifically:

e Financing instruments held in the business model aimed at collecting contractual cash flows, which
have contractual cash flows that are only principal payments and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, and are subsequently measured at amortized cost;

e Tools of finance are held within a business model that aims to collect contractual cash flows and sell
debt instruments, which have contractual cash flows that are only payments of principal and interest
on the outstanding principal amount, and are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

¢ All other financing instruments (such as debt instruments managed on a fair value basis, or held
for sale] and investments in equity instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

However, the Group can select/identify the irrevocable after the initial recognition of the financial asset
on an asset-by-asset basis as follows:

e The Group may choose to irrevocably include subsequent changes in the fair value of non-controlling
interests in tradable or potentially replaceable proprietary instruments recognized by the buyer in
a business combination that applies International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 3, in other
comprehensive income, and

e The Group can irrevocably determine the financing tools that meet the cost extinguishing criteria
or fair value through other comprehensive income as measured by fair value through consolidated
statement of comprehensive income if it cancels or significantly reduces accounting mismatch
(referred to as fair value option)

For an asset that is classified and measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, its contractual terms should result in cash flows which are only principal
payments and interest on the outstanding principal amount.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income are subject to a test of decline.

Expected credit losses

The Group recognizes provisions for expected credit losses on the following financial instruments that
are not measured at fair value through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income:

e Balances with banks.
e Financial assets at amortized cost.

No impairment loss is recognized on equity instruments.

e Except for purchased or emerging financial assets with low credit value (which are considered
separately below], expected credit losses must be measured by a loss provision in an amount equivalent
to:

e Expected credit losses for a period of (12) months, which is the time horizon for expected credit
losses resulting from those hypothetical events on financial instruments that can be realized within
(12) months after the reporting date, referred to as Stage 1; or

Expected credit losses for a period of (12) months, which is the time horizon for expected credit losses
resulting from all potential hypothetical events over the life of the financial instrument referred to as
Stage 2 and Stage 3.

The expected lifetime credit loss must be recorded for the financial instrument if the credit risks on
that financial instrument have increased significantly since initial recognition For all other financial
instruments, the expected credit loss is measured at an amount equal to the expected credit loss for a
period of (12) months

Expected credit losses are a probable estimate of the current value of credit losses This value is
measured as the current value of the difference between the cash flows due to the group under the
contract and the cash flows received by the group and arising from the preference of several future
economic scenarios, deducted according to the effective interest rate of the asset.

2-12 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash with banks
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are presented as a separate item within current liabilities in the
statement of financial position.

2-13 Share capital
The Partner’s shares of the Company are included in the Partner’s equity.

2-14 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent obligations of the Company in the ordinary course of business.
Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if they are due within one year or less, and
as non-current liabilities if they are due within more than one year.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

2-15 Revenue Generation and Recognition of Expenses

Revenues and expenses of interest are calculated for all financial instruments bearing interest by
applying the actual interest rate to the total book value of the financial instrument, except for financial
assets that have subsequently experienced a credit loss (or stage three), for which interest revenue is
continued to be recognized and suspended so that it is not recorded in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and appears as a credit balance against the total balance of the liability.

2-16 Borrowings

Loans are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortized cost Any differences between the amounts received (net of transaction costs)
and the amounts repaid are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over

the period of the loans using the effective interest method.

Loans are classified as current assets unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

2-17 Borrowing costs
The costs of public, private, and directly related borrowing to the production of qualified assets are
amortized during the period necessary to prepare these assets for use or sale Qualified assets are

assets that require a long period to prepare them to be ready for use for their intended purposes.

Other borrowing costs are charged to the period in which they are incurred.
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2-18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a result of
a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and
reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

The value recognised as a provision represents the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the estimated cash flows to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount represents the present value of those cash flows.

2-19 Employee benefits

For defined contribution plans, the Company mandatorily pays contributions to the pension insurance
fund managed by a government entity (the Social Security Corporation). The Company has no further
payment obligations once the contributions are paid. Such contributions are recognised as social
security expense as they fall due.

2-20 Income tax
The Tax expenses represent tax payable amounts.

Payable tax expenses are calculated based on taxable profits. Taxable profits are different from profits
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, as disclosed profits include revenue that is not
subject to tax, expenses that are not recognisable in the financial year but in subsequent years or
accumulated losses that are accepted in terms of tax or items that are not taxable or recognisable for
tax purposes.

Taxes are calculated as per the tax rates established by the laws, regulations and instructions in the
Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be paid or recovered as a result of temporary timing differences
between the value of assets or liabilities in the financial statements and the value based on which
tax profit is calculated. Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method in the statement financial
position, and deferred tax is accounted for in accordance with tax rates expected to be applied to settle
the tax liability or realise deferred tax assets.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities balance is reviewed at the consolidated financial statements date
and written down when it is not probable to utilise tax assets partially or fully or upon settlement of the
tax obligation.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off existing
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same tax department.

2-21 Leases

Lease contracts are recognized as assets for the right to use and corresponding obligations on the
date the leased assets are available for use in the group Each lease payment is allocated between the
obligation and finance cost The finance cost is charged to the comprehensive income statement over
the lease period to obtain a constant periodic interest rate on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period Depreciation is calculated on the right-of-use assets over the asset’s productive life or
lease term, whichever is shorter, using the straight-line method.

Contracts may contain rental and non-rental components. The corresponding group in the contract is
dedicated to rental and non-rental items based on their independent relative prices Lease terms are

negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions Lease
agreements do not impose any commitments beyond the interests in the leased assets retained by the
lessor Leased. assets cannot be used as collateral for borrowing purposes.

(3) Financial Risk Management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the risks of fluctuation
in the market (which includes currency translation risk and cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on

minimising potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(A) Market risk

- Foreign exchange risk.

The Group faces risks arising from its dealings in foreign currencies, the most important of which is the
US dollar. The conversion rate between USD and Jordanian Dinar remained unchanged during the year.

These risks arise from the change in the value of financial instruments as a result of currency exchange
rate fluctuations and the Group follows a deliberate policy in managing its foreign currency positions.

The following is a summary of the quantitative data related to the Company’s exposure to currency risk
of volatility, provided to the management of the Company based on the risk management:

Jordanian Dinar Kuwaiti Total
Dinar

As of December 31, 2023
Cash on hand and at banks 345,427 - 345,427
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income - 151,957 151,957
Financial assets at amortized cost 111,556,717 - 111,556,717
Other debit balances 866,153 - 866,153
Investment properties 2,880,959 - 2,880,959
Assets foreclosed in repayment of due 1,741,444 - 1,741,444
debts
Right of use of leased assets 231,598 - 231,598
Property and equipment 189,437 - 189,437
Deferred tax assets 3,102,885 - 3,102,885
Assets held for sale 145,188 - 145,188
Total assets 121,059,808 151,957 121,211,765
Bank Loans 71,737,384 - 71,737,384
Trade Payables and Other Credit Balances 1,361,705 - 1,361,705
Other provisions 143,709 - 143,709
Lease Liabilities 249,653 - 249,653
Income tax provision 1,889,399 - 1,889,399
Liabilities directly associated with assets
held for sale 335 335
Total liabilities 75,382,185 75,382,185
Net 45,677,623 151,957 45,829,580
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Jordanian Kuwaiti Total Interest repricing gap
Dinar Dinar Classification is prepared on the basis of interest or accrual repricing periods
As of December 31, 2022
Cash on hand and at banks 2,262,586 - 2,262,586 Jordanian Dinar Less  month  Morethan3 ftems
E(I)nr:;felileansss“?etslnaéofrar:revalue through other _ 14 8, 197 14 8, 197 December 31, 2023 tnr:::t; m:;fhs torg?:;:fhs m:::z:: Total
Financial assets at amortized cost 84,318,473 - 84,318,473 Asets
Other debit balances 628,907 - 628,907 Cash on hand and at banks sa2r ST
Investment properties 2,853,444 _ 2,853,444 Financial assets at fair value through OCI 151,957 151,957
Assets foreclosed in repayment of due debts 1,320,261 - 1,320,261 Financial assets at amortised cost 9,534,638 4,657,293 5,977,206 111,556,717
Right of use of leased assets 127,294 - 127,294 Other debit balances 135,343 185,157 385,872 866,153
Property and equipment 230,272 - 230,272 Right of use assets 231,598 231,598
Deferred tax assets 2,726, 128 - 2,726, 128 Investment property-net - - - - - - 2,880,959 2,880,959
Assets held for sale 145,229 - 145,229 Asset foreclosed against defaulted loans - . . . . . ATM444 1741444
Total assets 94,612,594 148,197 94,760,791 Property and equipment ] ) ] ) ) ) 189,437 189,437
Deferred tax assets - - - - - - 3,102,885 3,102,885
Bank Loans 52,160,520 ) 52,160,520 Assets held for sale - 834 - - - - 144,354 145,188
-I(;r;deer Efoyésb_ljjsand Other Credit Balances ?gg?gg ) %S?gg Total assets 9,669,081 4,843,284 6363078 13,488,937 41,163,044 36,895380  8788,061 121,211,765
Visi , - ,
Lease Liabilities 141,844 - 141,844 Lebiltes
Income tax provision 1203,419 ) 1203.419 Bank loans - - 17,680,262 54,048,122 - - - 71,737,384
Liabilities directly associated with assets held Lease obligations 8,631 16,528 24,757 44,371 155,366 - - 249,653
for sale 2,360 - 2,360 Trade and other payables 345873 411,446 198,572 405,814 - - - 1,361,705
Total liabilities 54,187,138 - 54,187,138 provisions - - - - - - 143,709 143,709
Net 40,425,456 148,197 40,573,653 Income tax provision - - - - - - 1,889,399 1,889,399
Liabilities directly associated with assets held
- Interest rate risk for cash flows and fair value. for sale - 335 - - - - - 335
Total liabilities 354504 428,300 17,912,501 54,498,307 155,366 - 2033108 75,382,185
The Company’s interest rate risks arise from bank loans. Loans granted to the Group at a variable
interest rate expose the Group to interest rate risk for cash flows, while fixed interest loans expose the Interest repricing gap 9315477 4414975 (11,549513)  (41,009,370) 41,007,678 36,895,380 6754953 45,829,580
Group to fair value interest rate risk.
_ ' _ December 31, 2022
ﬁrse?jti t3tj a?wek(;egT:rft:ei[)i ii;?jgjig;ag it:adrtsoat:de 8 gog cF))l f’;rz \{/;2 ?ebﬁ Lr]j[erest rate consist of bank loans and Total assets 9,542,444 5637428 6,007,896 11,274,002 32,641,952 20,846,497 8810572 94,760,791
Total Liabilities 213557 179,976 26,692,740 25,759,022 36,289 - 1305554 54,187,138
If the interest rate on loans and facilities changes by 1% assuming other variables are constant, the Interest repricing gap 9,328,887  5457,452  (20,684,844)  (14,485,020) 32,605,663 20,846,497 7,505,018 40,573,653

impact on the statement of comprehensive income will be anincrease in interest expense by JD 717,374
as at 31 December 2023 (2022: JD 521,605). (b) Credit risk
The effect of a lower interest rate of the same value will have the same effect as above with the reversal
of the signal.

The Group does not have significant credit risk concentrations. Financial assets subject to credit risk
are limited to balances with banks, trade receivables, some other receivables and amounts due from
related parties. The Group only deals with financial institutions with high credit solvency. The Group
also has a clear credit policy for all customers.
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The following table shows the cash at banks and its credit rating as at 31 December as follows: December 31, 2022

Less than one

classification 2023 2022 Jordanian Dinar year More than a year Total
JD JD Assets:
Ahli Bank +B 2,191 3,555 Cash on hand and at banks 2,262,586 - 2,262,586
Housing Bank -BB 75,834 106,952 Financial assets at fair value through OCI - 148,197 148,197
Jordan Kuwait Bank *B 37,337 637,143 Financial assets at amortised cost 30,830,024 53,488,449 84,318,473
Etihad Bank BB 3,802 3,935 Other debit balances 628,907 . 628,907
Jordan Commercial Bank +B 55,753 23,867 ) ’ ’
Jordan Islamic Bank +B 40,362 - Right of use assets 61,176 66,118 127,294
Jordan Bank -BB - 1,338 Investment properties-net - 2,853,444 2,853,444
Egyptian Arab Land Bank NR - 15,862 Asset foreclosed against defaulted loans - 1,320,261 1,320,261
ABC Bank +BB 14,442 7,086 Property and equipment 88,668 141,604 230,272
Invest Bank BB 67,959 1,389,281 Deferred tax assets - 2,726,128 2,726,128
Arab Jordan Invest Bank +B 7,794 3,899 Assets held for sale 145,229 . 145,229
Cairo Amman Bank B 4,856 9,861 Total assets 34,016,590 60,744,201 94,760,791
AlIRajihi Bank +B 11,371 2,243
+BB 968 . Liabilities:
Total assets 322,669 2,204,622 )
Bank loans 52,160,520 - 52,160,520
(c) Liquidity risk Lease liabilities 105,555 36,289 141,844
Trade and other payables 576,860 - 576,860
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that a group is exposed to difficulties in meeting its obligations. Other provisions - 102,135 102,135
Income tax provision 1,203,419 - 1,203,419
The Group manages liquidity risk through the availability of the necessary cash through borrowing and Liabilities directly associated with assets
credit facilities. The Company also monitors cash flows of due instalments from customers. held for sale 2,360 - 2,360
Total liabilities 54,048,714 138,424 54,187,138
The table below shows the Group'’s financial liabilities (not discounted) to certain categories as at the The net (20,032,124) 60,605,777 40,573,653

date of the statement of financial position based on the maturity date for the remaining periods:

December 31, 2023 3-2 Capital risk management

Less than one

More than a year Total , L. . . . ) S .
year The Group’s objective in capital management is to maintain the Group’'s viability which generates a
JD JD JD return for shareholders and maintains an optimal capital structure, thereby reducing capital costs.
Assets: The Group monitors capital by monitoring the debt ratio. This ratio is calculated by dividing the net
Cash on hand and at banks 345,427 - 345,427 debts by the total capital, and the net debts are calculated by counting the total loans, which include
. . . loans, credit banks, obligations of operating leases and loan bonds, from which cash and the like are
Financial assets at fair value through OCI . : . . S o
. 151 957 151.957 reduced, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. Total capital is calculated by
Financial assets at amortised cost 33,498,293 78,058:424 111,556:717 adding shareholders’ equity with net debt, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Other debit balances 866,153 - 866,153
Right of use assets 82,045 149,553 231,598 Gearing ratio was as follows:
Investment properties-net - 2,880,959 2,880,959
Asset foreclosed against defaulted loans - 1,741,444 1,741,444 December 31 December 31
Property and equipment 70,260 119,177 189,437 2023 2022
Deferred tax assets - 3,102,885 3,102,885 JD JD
Assets held for sale 145,188 - 145,188
Total assets 35,007,366 86,204,399 121,211,765
Total borrowings 71,987,037 52,302,364
Liabilities: Less: Cash on hand and at banks (345,427) (2,262,586)
Bank loans 71 ,737,384 - 71 ,737,384 Net debt 71 ,641 ,61 0 50,039,778
Loase labiliies ayables 301 08 155,360 501 20 Net shareholders' equity 45,829,580 40,573,653
Other provisions . 143,709 143,709 Total capital 117,471,190 90,613,431
Income tax provision 1,889,399 - 1,889,399 Gearing ratio 61% 55%
Liabilities directly associated with assets 335 ) 335
held for sale
Total liabilities 75,083,110 299,075 75,382,185
The net (40,075,744) 85,905,324 45,829,580
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3-3 Fair value

The following table represents the financial instruments recorded at fair value based on the valuation
method, where the different levels are defined as follows:

Level 1: Declared (unadjusted) prices of assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2: Prices published in active markets for similar financial assets and liabilities, or other price
valuation methods for which material data are based on market information.

Level 3: Pricing methods in which not all material data is based on observable market information,
and the Group has used book value, which is the best tool available to measure the fair value of those

investments..

(a) Financial assets & Liabilities that are measured at fair value:

31 December 2023

Financial asset at fair value
through OCI

31 December 2022
Financial asset at fair value

Level (1) Level (2) Level (3) Total
JD JD JD
- - 151,957 151,957
Level (1) Level (2) Level (3) Total
JD JD JD
- - 148,197 148,197

through OCI

(b) Financial assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring

basis:

Cash on hand and at banks
Financial assets at amortised cost
Other debit balances

Right of use assets
Property and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Assets held for sale

Bank loans

Lease liabilities

Trade and other payables
Other provisions

Income tax provision

Liabilities directly associated with assets
held for sale
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2023
Book value Fair value
JD Level (1) Level (2) Level (3)
JD JD JD
345,427 345,427 - -
111,556,717 - 111,556,717 -
866,153 - 866,153 -
231,598 - 231,598 -
189,437 - 189,437 -
3,102,885 - 3,082,736 -
145,188 - 145,188 -
71,737,384 - 71,737,384 -
249,653 - 249,653 -
1,361,705 - 1,361,705 -
143,709 - 143,709 -
1,889,399 - 1,889,399 -
335 335

Cash on hand and at banks
Financial assets at amortised cost
Other debit balances

Right of use assets
Property and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Assets held for sale

Bank loans

Lease liabilities

Trade and other payables
Other provisions

Income tax provision

Liabilities directly associated with assets
held for sale

2022
Book value Fair value
JD Level (1) Level (2) Level (3)
JD JD JD
2,262,586 2,262,586 - -
84,318,473 - 84,318,473 -
628,486 - 628,486 -
127,294 - 127,294 -
230,272 - 230,272 -
2,726,128 - 2,726,128 -
145,229 - 145,229 -
52,160,520 - 52,160,520 -
141,844 - 141,844 -
576,860 - 576,860 -
101,714 - 101,714 -
1,203,419 - 1,203,419 -
2,360 - 2,360 -

Management believes that the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities is close to their fair

value.

There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the year ending 31 December 2023and 2022.

(c) Non-financial assets that are measured at fair value in the consolidated financial

statements:

Investment property

Asset foreclosed against defaulted loans

Investment property

Asset foreclosed against defaulted loans

2023
Book value Fair value
JD Level (1) Level (2) Level (3)
JD JD JD
2,880,959 - 2,880,959 -
1,741,444 - 1,741,444 -
2022
Book value Fair value
JD Level (1) Level (2) Level (3)
JD JD JD
2,853,444 - 2,853,444
1,320,261 - 1,320,261



3-4 Categories of financial instruments

2023 2022
JD JD
Assets as Consolidated Statement Of Financial Position
Financial assets at fair value
Financial assets at fair value through OCI 151,957 148,197
Financial assets at amortised cost
Cash on hand and at banks 322,669 2,204,622
Financial assets at amortised cost 111,556,717 84,318,473
Other debit balances (excluding prepaid expenses) 516,318 488,801
112,395,704 87,011,896

Liabilities as Consolidated Statement Of Financial Posi-
tion
Bank loans 71,737,384 52,160,520
Lease liabilities 249,653 141,844
Trade and other payables (excluding legal liabilities) 1,357,421 533,739

73,344,458 52,836,103

(4) Critical Accounting Estimates And Judgements

The Group conducts an ongoing assessment of accounting estimates and judgments based on past
experience and other factors, including anticipated events that are believed to be reasonable based on
current circumstances.

The group makes estimates and assumptions regarding the future. The resulting accounting estimates
are by their nature rarely equal to the relevant actual results. Estimates and assumptions that have
significant risks and cause a material adjustment in the book values of assets and liabilities during the
next fiscal year are as follows:

Impairment of seized assets

Impairment of seized assets is recognised based on most recent property valuation approved by
accredited valuators for the purposes of calculating the impairment. The impairment provisions for
seized assets is reviewed periodically.

Expected credit loss provisions

The Group’s managementis required to use significant judgments and estimates to estimate future cash
flows amounts and timings and estimate the risks of a significant increase in credit risk for financial
assets after initial recognition and future measurement information for expected credit losses.

Leases

Determining of lease term: In determining the lease term, the management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a
termination option. The extension options (or periods after the termination options) are included only
in the term of the lease if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated). The
evaluation is reviewed in the event of a significant event or significant change in the circumstances that
affect this evaluation and that are under the control of the lessee. Extension and termination of leases
options: these are included in a number of leases. These conditions are used to increase operational
flexibility in terms of contract management. Most of the extension and termination options held are

renewable by both the Group and the lessor.

Discounting of lease payments: Lease payments are discounted using the Group’ incremental borrowing
rate ("IBR"). Management applied judgements and estimates to determine the incremental borrowing
rate at the start of the lease.

Assets and liabilities that are stated at cost

Management reviews, on a regular basis, the assets and liabilities that are stated at cost to estimate
impairments, if any. Impairment losses are recognised in the Consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income for the period.

Income tax

The financial year is charged with its own income tax expense in accordance with the laws and
regulations, and accounting standards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities and required tax provision
are accounted for.

Provision for legal cases
A provision is made for any potential legal obligations based on the legal study prepared by the Group’s
legal advisor that identifies the potential risks that may occur in the future. Such study is reviewed

periodically.
(5) Cash On Hand And With Banks

2023 2022
JD JD
Cash on hand 22,758 57,964
Current accounts at banks 322,669 2,204,622
Total 345,427 2,262,586

The Group has calculated the expected credit loss provision on bank balances and has not recorded it
as the expected credit loss is immaterial.

(6) Financial Assets At Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

2023 2022
JD JD
Outside the Kingdom
Shares of unlisted companies 151,957 148,197

Thisitemrepresentstheinvestmentin Al-Soor Finance and Leasing Company (Limited Liability Company
- Kuwait) with 346,000 shares and 0.07% contribution rate. Cash dividends on the above financial assets
amounted to JD 6,249 for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: JD 6,292). Management believes
that this value is the best measure of fair value according to available valuation methods.

(7) Financial Assets At Amortised Cost

Instalments receivable due from the Company’s customers from commercial and Murabaha financing
transactions for vehicles and real estate. These instalments include the original financing in addition
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to the amounts of the income calculated on such financing. The instalment receivables balances are

as follows:

2023 2022
JD JD
Due and past due 8,247,091 8,450,083
Due within less than one year 41,019,499 33,774,667
Due within more than one year and less than five years 105,110,936 73,286,908
154,377,526 115,511,658
Less: Provision for expected credit losses (9,892,346) (9,643,785)
Less: Deferred financing income in instalments not due yet (31,943,693) (20,244,483)
Less: Interest in suspense (984,770) (1,304,917)
111,556,717 84,318,473
The sectors distribution of instalment receivables are as follows:
2023 2022
JD JD
Properties 1,448,091 1,497,863
Motor vehicles 148,279,727 106,636,927
Projects 2,882,083 4,532,844
Durable goods 1,767,625 2,844,024
Total instalment receivables 154,377,526 115,511,658
Less: provision for expected credit losses (9,892,346) (9,643,785)
Less: Deferred financing income in instalments not due yet (31,943,693) (20,244,483)
Less: Interest in suspense (984,770) (1,304,917)
111,556,717 84,318,473

Non-performing loans as of 31 December 2023 amounted to JD 11,532,258

(2022: JD 12,036,630).
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2023

Total balance as at the beginning of the year
New facilities during the year

Repaid facilities

Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Write-off

Gross Balance as at Year End

2022

Total balance as at the beginning of the year
Impact of acquisition of subsidiary

New facilities during the year

Repaid facilities

Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulting from adjustments
Write-off

Gross Balance as at Year End

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Individual Aggregate Individual ~ Aggregate JD JD
JD JD JD JD
76,938,170 - 5,815,651 - 12,513,354 95,267,175
52,404,589 - 1,306,475 - 964,343 54,675,407
(8,462,623) - (1,618,894) - (2,959,029)  (13,040,546)
1,742,695 - (782,656) - (960,039) -
(7,597,088) - 8,299,169 - (702,081) -
(2,810,338) - (1,461,546) - 4,271,884 -
(14,019,130) - (403,007) - (41,016)  (14,463,153)
- - - - (5,050) (5,050)
98,196,275 - 11,155,192 - 13,082,366 122,433,833
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Individual Aggregate Individual ~ Aggregate JD JD
JD JD JD JD

62,119,891 - 2,048,339 - 7,765,045 71,933,275
7,053,922 - 936,845 - 6,849,445 14,840,212
30,890,092 - 181,751 - 238,412 31,310,255
(6,304,965) - (572,574) - (1,821,531) (8,699,070)
436,519 - (327,025) - (109,494) -
(3,997,893) - 4,133,958 - (136,065) -
(2,501,839) - (604,640) - 3,106,479 -
(10,757,557) - 18,997 - (3,262,718)  (14,001,278)
- - - - (116,219) (116,219)
76,938,170 - 5,815,651 - 12,513,354 95,267,175

Net instalment receivable, after subtracting the deferred revenue, are distributed in aggregate based
on the credit stages in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 as follows:
Movement on expected credit loss provision:

2023

Total balance as at the beginning of the year
Impairment loss on new balances during the
year

Recoveries from impairment loss on paid
balances

Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Impact on the provision as at the end of the
year

Changes resulting from adjustments
Write-off

Gross Balance as at Year End

2022

Total balance as at the beginning of the year
Impact of acquisition of subsidiary
Impairment loss on new balances during the
year

Recoveries from impairment loss on paid
balances

Transferred to stage 1

Transferred to stage 2

Transferred to stage 3

Impact on the provision as at the end of the
year

Changes resulting from adjustments
Write-off

Gross Balance as at Year End

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Individual Aggregate Individual Aggregate JD JD
JD JD JD JD
501,120 - 831,100 - 8,311,565 9,643,785
1,203,338 - 452,140 - 2,563,989 4,219,467
(45,798) - (591,195) - (3,077,406) (3,714,399)
888,508 - (221,301) - (667,207) -
(63,799) - 503,253 - (439,454) -
(28,770) - (103,393) - 132,163 -
(1,851,864) - (335,940) - 2,187,804 -
(134,947) - (94,590) - (26,970) (256,507)
467,788 - 440,074 - 8,984,484 9,892,346
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Individual Aggregate Individual Aggregate JD JD
JD JD JD JD

910,494 - 184,112 - 4,696,974 5,791,580
351,913 - 174,657 - 4,346,473 4,873,043
1101171 - 113,743 - 449,373 1,664,287
(90,187) ) (75,996) (600,045) (766,228)
49,164 - (38,940) - (10,224) -
(78,225) - 118,156 - (39,931) -
(52,716) - (75,127) - 127,843 -
(930,087) - 29,496 - 900,591 -
(760,407) - 400,999 - (1,443,270) (1,802,678)
- - - - (116,219) (116,219)
501,120 - 831,100 - 8,311,565 9,643,785
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Scheduled debts:

This represent loans that were previously classified as non-performing instalment receivable and
were excluded from the category of non-performing credit facilities according to a schedule and were
classified as debts under watch list or transferred to performing, and their total amounted to JD
2,909,981 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: JD 2,243,174).

The balance of scheduled loans represents the loans that have been scheduled, whether they are still
classified under a watchlist or have been transferred to performing.

Restructured debts:
Restructuring means re-arranging of credit facilities in terms of modifying installments, extending
the life of credit facilities, postponing some installments or extending the grace period, and their total

amounted to JD 3,388,820 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: JD 5,809,402).

Based on the decision of the company’s Board of Director ,non-performing loans were written off along
with their allowance with on amount of JD 5,050 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: JD 116,219).

The aging table of the net instalment receivables is as follows:

2023 2022
Due and Due and
past due past due
instalment Total debt instalment Total debt
receivables balance receivables balance
JD JD JD JD
Not due instalments
receivable - 88,045,445 - 72,975,422
1- 30 days 461,479 14,818,606 371,711 6,131,477
30 - 60 days 350,442 5,854,393 162,418 2,576,897
60 - 90 days 233,374 2,183,131 143,840 1,546,749
90 - 180 days 326,123 1,922,091 208,119 1,127,998
180 - 270 days 247,301 1,096,829 344,621 1,034,103
270 - 360 days 190,216 614,374 611,311 1,706,939
More than 360 days 6,438,156 7,898,964 6,608,063 8,167,590
8,247,091 122,433,833 8,450,083 95,267,175

Balances of instalment receivables include accounts for which the Company has filed legal cases

against customers in order to collect unpaid and due amounts are as follows:

Interest in suspense within due instalments

Movement on interest in suspense in due instalments:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Addition: Interest in suspense during the
year

Less: Interest transferred to revenue
Less: Written-off interest
Total balance as at the end of the year

Balances at the beginning of the year

Addition: impact of acquisition of a
subsidiary

Addition: Interest in suspense during the
year

Less: Interest transferred to revenue
Less: Written-off interest
Total balance as at the end of the year

(8) Other Receivables

2023 2022
Due and Due and
past due Total debt past due Total debt
receivables balance receivables balance
JD JD JD JD
CUSTOMERS BALANCES —
LEGAL CASES 6,687,093 11,518,390 6,180,724 9,972,351
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Accounts receivables
Prepaid expenses

Refundable deposits
Others

Less: Expected credit loss of other debit balances

Movement Expected credit loss of other debit balances :

Balances at the beginning of the year
Additions

2023
Real
Estates Companies Individuals Total
JD JD JD JD
119,509 649,327 536,081 1,304,917
5,867 41,339 213,539 260,745
(6,798) (447,046) (121,998) (575,842)
- - (5,050) (5,050)
118,578 243,620 622,572 984,770
2022
Real
Estates Companies Individuals Total
JD JD JD JD
113,904 58,979 306,520 479,403
- 702,681 215,181 917,862
16,370 56,722 215,917 289,009
(10,765) (169,055) (201,537) (381,357)
119,509 649,327 536,081 1,304,917
2023 2022
JD JD
444,067 223,737
426,066 140,106
28,160 226,021
41,591 39,043
(73,731) (421)
866,153 628,486
2023 2022
JD JD
421 -
73,310 421
73,731 421




(9) Investment Properties

Fair value of investments property amounted to JD 2,880,959 as of 31 December 2023 based on the

estimates provided by three independent real estate experts and as per the company’s policies.

Cost
Accumulated Depreciation *

Recovered from impairment provision of investment proper-
ties **

*Movement of accumulated Depreciation this year is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Depreciation this year
Balance the year end

**Movement of impairment provision of investment properties this year is as follows:

Balances at the beginning of the year

Recovered from impairment provision of investment proper-
ties this year

Balance at the year end

(10) Asset Foreclosed Against Defaulted Loans

Balance as the beginning of the year
Additions
Disposals

The Group assessed these properties during the year 2023 by independent real estate experts, and
there is no impairment in the value of the real estate acquired as at 31 December 2023.
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(11) Right Of Use Assets/Lease Liabilities

2023 2022
JD JD
3,941,500 3,941,500

(96,383) (89,583)
(964,158) (998,473)
2,880,959 2,853,444

2023 2022

JD JD
89,583 82,783
6,800 6,800
96,383 89,583

2023 2022

JD JD
998,473 998,473
(34,315) -
964,158 998,473

2023 2022
JD JD
1,320,261 1,674,879

570,231 220,887

(149,048) (575,505)

1,741,444 1,320,261

Right Of Use Assets

Cost

Balance as the beginning of the year
Additions

Balance at December 31

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as the beginning of the year
Depreciation for the year

Balance at December 31

Net Book Value as at December 31

Lease liabilities

2023 2022
JD JD

516,048 516,048
204,258 -
720,306 516,048
388,754 288,662

99,954 100,092
488,708 388,754
231,598 127,294

The Lease liability has been discounted using a 6.5% interest rate for 2023 and 2022.

Balance
as the Interest Balance
2023 beginning  on Lease Lease at the Short- Long-
of the year Liabilities  Additions Payments year end term term
JD JD JD JD JD JD JD
Lease
liabilities 141,844 17,676 204,258 (114,125) 249,653 94,287 155,366
Balance
as the Interest Balance
2022 beginning on Lease Lease at the year
of the year  Liabilities Payments end Short-term  Long-term
JD JD JD JD JD JD
Lease liabilities 241,997 10,693 (110,846) 141,844 67,305 74,539




(12) Property And Equipment

(13) Trade And Other Payables

Furniture, 2023 2022
Supplies decorations
and and key Office JD JD
equipment money Computers  Transportation  equipment Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD Accounts payable 1,121,378 379,087
2023 Accrued expenses 184,186 101,958
Cost Accrued dividends 50,314 50,381
Balance As of 1 January 2023 245,560 461,693 513,783 81,555 174,042 1,476,633 Sales tax deposits 4,284 43,121
Additions - - 26,800 - 7,634 34,434 Insurance instalments received in advance 680 1,390
Disposals - - - - (5,913) (5,913) Others 863 923
Balance As of 31 December 1,361,705 576,860
2023 245,560 461,693 540,583 81,555 175,763 1,505,154
(14) Bank Borrowings
Accumulated depreciation
Balance As of 1 January 2023 238,573 401,439 401,982 49,459 154,908 1,246,361 2023 2022
Depreciation expense 2,915 11,121 42,559 8,753 7,045 72,393 JD JD
Disposals - - - - (3,037) (3,037)
As of 31 December 2023 241,488 412,560 444 541 58,212 158,916 1,315,717 Loans payable within one year 71,737,384 52,160,520
Net book value as at 31 The table below shows the loans granted by local banks to finance the company’s activity:
December 2023 4,072 49,133 96,042 23,343 16,847 189,437
- Maturit Facilities
Fully depreciated property and equipment as of 31 December 2023 amounted to JD 1,041,900 against Type of facilities date Y Currency limit 2023 2022
(2022: JD 914,371). D D D
Revolving loan Seztgzrzber Jordanian Dinar 5,000,000 4,850,658 83,516
Furniture,
Supplies decorations . September . .
and and key Office Revolving loan 2024 Jordanian Dinar 8,000,000 7,961,517 3,522,105
equipment money Computers  Transportation  equipment Total November
D D D D D D Revolving loan 2024 Jordanian Dinar 10,500,000 10,433,111 3,421,680
i‘mt Revolving loan July 2024  Jordanian Dinar 3,000,000 2,901,203 -
os
Balance As of 1 January 2022 89,081 417,648 394,523 58355 143,010 1,102,617 Overdraft Degg;nf‘ar Jordanian Dinar 1,000,000 569,280 621,479
Balances from investing in 155,554 40,302 110,749 50,300 28,960 385,865 Septemb
subsidiary Revolving loan 9252”21 ®"  Jordanian Dinar 11,000,000 10,943,965 4,241,678
Additions 925 3,743 9,621 - 2,072 16,361
Disposals - . (1,110) (27,100) - (28,210) Revolving loan May 2024 Jordanian Dinar 3,000,000 952,289 2,972,933
Balance As of 31December Revolving loan May 2024 Jordanian Dinar 7,000,000 6,944,194 3,637,389
2022 245,560 461,693 513,783 81,555 174,042 1,476,633 September
Revolving loan 2024 Jordanian Dinar 5,000,000 2,658,161 -
gcl“'”m“rte‘;' :'jp’ecia“ggzz 49079 oes0 200 e wmas searon Revolving loan June 2024  Jordanian Dinar 6,000,000 55,283 4,964,472
a:ance As of 1 January ! ’ ! ' ' ' Revolving loan June 2024  Jordanian Dinar 17,500,000 9,737,495 15,024,860
Balances from investing in 28,549 89,668 N b
subsidiary 146,498 50,300 22,053 337,068 Revolving loan 0585"4 ®" Jordanian Dinar 4,000,000 3,825,462 3,670,408
Depreciation expense 2,996 13,230 39,926 8,753 8,358 73,263
Disposals : - (577) (27,100) - (27677) Revolving loan November . janian Dinar 5,000,000 4,976,689 5,000,000
As of 31 December 2022 238,573 401,439 401,982 49,459 154,908 1,246,361 2024
Revolving loan September  ,  danian Dinar 5,000,000 4,928,077 5,000,000
Net book value as at 31 2024
December 2022 6,987 60,254 111,801 32,096 19,134 230,272 71,737,384 52,160,520
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All these loans are guaranteed by a comfort letter issued by Investment Bank and Tamkeen for finance

lease.

The interest rate on the above loans ranges from 6% to 8.95% as of 31 December 2023 (2022: 6%- 8.7%).

(15) Other Provisions

2023 2022
JD JD
Legal provision 103,913 64,995
End of service provision 39,796 36,719
143,709 101,714
* The movement on Other provisions during the year is as follow:
Reversed
Used to Revenues
Beginning During during the Ending
balance Additions the Year Year Balance
JD JD JD JD JD
2023
Legal provision 64,995 38,918 - - 103,913
End of service provision 36,719 3,077 - - 39,796
101,714 41,995 - - 143,709
Reversed
Used to Revenues
Beginning During during the Ending
balance Additions the Year Year Balance
JD JD JD JD JD
2022
Legal provision 32,840 64,995 (1,696) (31,144) 64,995
End of service provision 91,533 3,106 (57,920) - 36,719
124,373 68,101 (59,616) (31,144) 101,714

(16) Income Tax

(a) Movements of deferred tax assets was as follows:

31 December 2023

Deferred Tax 31 December

Balance as Balance at

of beginning Released end of the 2023 2022

of the year  Additions amounts year

JD JD JD JD JD
Items included as of 31 December 2023
Provision of ECL of financial assets at
amortized cost 9,643,785 4,219,467 3,970,906 9,892,346 2,769,856 2,700,259
Interest in suspense - 984,770 - 984,770 275,736 -
Accounts receivable provision 27,393 73,310 - 100,703 28,197 7,670
Legal Provision 64,995 38,918 - 103,913 29,096 18,199
9,736,173 5,316,465 3,970,906 11,081,732 3,102,885 2,726,128
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The deferred tax was calculated as at 31 December 2023 and 2023 on 28% according to the Income Tax

Law for the year 2018, which was effective as of January 1, 2019.
(b) Income tax provision

Movement on income tax provision during the year is as follows:

2023 2022
JD JD
Balance at 1 January 1,203,419 1,045,114
Income tax expense 2,197,633 1,484,925
Balances resulted from investing in subsidiary - 75,353
Income tax paid (1,511,653) (1,401,973)
Balance at 31 December 1,889,399 1,203,419

(c) Income tax expense presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income consists of the following:

2023 2022
JD JD
Income tax expense on current year profit 2,197,633 1,484,925
Impact of deferred tax assets (376,757) 276,569
1,820,876 1,761,494

(d) Reconciliation between taxable income and accounting income is as follows:

2023 2022
JD JD

Accounting profit 7,073,043 9,922,702
Amendments 772,518 (4,622,543)
Taxable income 7,845,561 5,300,159
Tax due on dividends of financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income (shares outside Jordan) at 14% 876 881
Statutory tax rate 28% 28%
Effective tax rate 25.7% 17.8%

(e) Tax status of Bindar Trade and Investment company (Parent company) and its

subsidiaries:

Bindar Trading and Investment Company

The Company is subject to income tax of 24% for 2023 (2022: 24%), in addition to national contribution

tax of 4%.

The Company obtained a final clearance from the Income and Sales Tax Department for the years 2018

and 2020.




The Company has submitted tax returns for the years 2019, 2021 and 2022. The tax due was paid on the
legally specified date. The Income and Sales Tax Department has not reviewed the Company’s records
until the date of preparation of the Consolidated financial statements.

Sales tax returns were audited until the end of 2017. Tax returns related to the subsequent periods are
submitted on time and according to the rules.

Bindar Finance Leasing Company (Subsidiary)

The Company is subject to income tax of 24% for 2023 (2022: 24%]), in addition to national contribution
tax of 4%.

The Company obtained a final clearance from the Income and Sales Tax Department for the years 2018
and 2020.

The Company has submitted tax returns for the years 2021 and 2022. The tax due was paid on the
legally specified date. The Income and Sales Tax Department has not reviewed the Company’s records
until the date of preparation of the Consolidated financial statements.

The Company registered in the sales tax department on 1 January 2017, Tax returns were submitted
and the due tax was paid up to the date of preparing these Consolidated financial statements.

Rakeen Real Estate Company (Subsidiary)

The Company is subject to income tax of 20% for 2023 (2022: 20%], in addition to national contribution
tax of 1%.

The Company obtained a final clearance from the Income and Sales Tax Department for the years of
2018 and 2020.

The Company has submitted tax returns for the years 2019, 2021 and 2022. The tax due was paid on the
legally specified date. The Income and Sales Tax Department has not reviewed the Company’s records
until the date of preparation of the Consolidated financial statements.

The Company is not registered in the network of taxpayers of sales tax.

Roboua Al Sharq Real Estate Company (Subsidiary)

The Company is subject to income tax of 20% for 2023 (2022: 20%), in addition to national contribution
tax of 1%.

The Company obtained a final clearance from the Income and Sales Tax Department for the years of
2018 and 2020.

The Company has submitted tax returns for the years 2019, 2021 and 2022. The tax due was paid on the
legally specified date. The Income and Sales Tax Department has not reviewed the Company’s records
until the date of preparation of the Consolidated financial statements.

(17) Shareholders’ Equity

Authorised, subscribed and paid in capital

The Company’s authorised, subscribed and paid in capital is JD 20,000,000 at a par value of JD 1 per
share.

The Company is 99.01% owned by Tamkeen Leasing Company (Parent Company) and Invest Bank -
Public Shareholding Limited Company is the Ultimate Parent Company.

Statutory reserve

According to the Jordanian Companies Law and the Company’s by-laws, the Group should deduct 10%
of its annual net profit to transfer to the statutory reserve, and continue do so each year provided that
the total deducted amounts for the reserve do not exceed 25% of the Group’s capital. For the purposes
of this law, net profits represent profits before the income tax provision deduction. This reserve is not
available for distribution to shareholders.

Net shareholders’ equity in the merged Company

Based on the decision of the extraordinary generalassembly held on 23 November 2022, it was approved
to merge Summit Auto Trade Facilities Company with Bindar Trading and Investment Company
whereas Bindar Trading and Investment Company becomes the merging Company and Summit Auto
Trade Facilities Company becomes the merged Company. The merger procedures were completed
on 6 September 2023, it was approved to use the opening balances resulting from the merger as of 1
January 2023. The general assembly decided to use the surplus resulting from the merger of Summit
Auto Trade Facilities Company to increase the Company’s capital. The Company has obtained the
approval of the Companies Control Department and is still in the process of finalizing the approvals of
Jordan Securities Commission and Amman Stock Exchange.

(18) Other Operating Revenue

2023 2022
JD JD

Customer Life Insurance 1,045,154 529,654
Opening File Fees 783,458 352,319
Instalment postponed fees 511,405 562,815
Administrative commissions 495,653 47,308
Penalties on late instalment payments 159,280 191,459
Direct facilities commissions 3,020 121,770
Others 205,302 139,837

3,203,272 1,945,162
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(19) Salaries, Wages And Employees’ Benefits

(22) Related Party Transactions

2023 2022 Consolidated statement of financial position
JD JD
Nature of
. relationship 2023 2022
Salaries and wages 1,396,170 1,270,003 D D
Social security contribution 132,698 130,735
Medical expe.ns.es and health insurance 113,547 110,297 Borrowings Invest bank Parent company 569,280 621,479
Employee training 11,534 996
o Current accounts
Employee life insurance 5,316 4,159 and refundable
1,659,265 1,516,190 deposits Invest bank Parent company 69,459 1,390,781
(20) Administrative Expenses Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
2023 2022 2023 2022
JD JD JD JD
Insurance 385,954 316,006 Finance expenses from Invest bank (Parent Company) 23,314 98,219
Professional, consulting and legal fees 93,401 176,704 Interest Revenue of corporate bond from Invest bank (Parent
Publicity and advertising 87,901 64,729 Company) 95,498 2,915
Board of Directors transportation fees and bonuses 56,986 61,514 .
Maintenance and Repairs and software license 49,309 60.716 The balance of guarantees with the parent Company JD 1,500 for the years 2023 and 2022.
Cleaning 37,595 34,756 Executive Management Salaries And Bonuses
Fees and licenses 37,435 44,271
Supplier's commissions 28,357 42,949 Salaries and bonuses of senior executive management for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted
Telecommunication and post expenses 26,925 28,549 to JD 197,022 (2022: JD 182,981).
Audit Fees 20,000 40,932 (23) Basic And Diluted Earnings Per Share From Profit Of The Year
Electricity and water 19,871 25,106
Stationery and printing 15,658 16,165 2023 2022
Hospitality 11,708 9,560 JD JD
Maintenance and repairs of buildings and equipment 11,234 5,845
Travel and transportations 4,100 3,893 Profit of the year 5,252,167 8,161,208
Others 231,923 171,539 Weighted average number of outstanding shares (share) 20,000,000 20,000,000
1,118,357 1,103,234 0,263 0,408
(21) Financing Expenses The basic earnings per share from the net profit for the year equals the diluted earnings per share as
the Company did not issue any financial instruments that may have an impact on the basic earnings
2023 2022 per share.
JD JD . —
(24) Contingent Liabilities
Loan facility financing expenses 4,841,192 3,214,075 At the consolidated financial statements date, the Company has contingent liabilities as follows:
Interest expense obligations against operating lease
contracts (Note 11) 17,676 10,693 2023 2022
4,858,868 3,224,768 JD D
Bank letters of guarantee 44,000 44,000
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Lawsuits Against The Company

The value of legal cases filed against the Company amounted to JD 171,995 as at 31 December 2023
(2022: JD 66,995) and they are still pending at the courts. A provision was booked for the value of JD
103,913 as of 31 December 2023 (2022: JD 64,995). In the opinion of the management and its legal
counsel of the Company, the Company will not incur additional obligations in respect of these cases.

There are no lawsuits filed against the subsidiaries (Bindar financial Leasing company, Rubuoa Al
Sharg Real-Estate company, and Rakeen Real-Estate Company) as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

(25) Assets And Liabilities Held For Sale

The General Assembly of Bindar Finance Leasing Company decided in its extraordinary
meeting held on 8 March 2023 to voluntarily liquidate the Company. Accordingly, each of the
company’s assets and liabilities will be liquidated and classified under a separate item in
accordance with the requirements of IFRS 5.

Below are the details of each company’s assets and liabilities :-

2023 2022

JD JD
Assets
Due from related party 945,132 950,301
Other debit balances 834 833
Cash at banks 144,354 144,396 ‘
Total assets held for sale 1,090,320 1,095,530
Elimination between the company and it's parent (945,132) (950,301)
Total assets held for sale 145,188 145,229
Liabilities
Other credit balances 335 2,360
Total liabilities related directly to asset held for sale 335 2,360

There were no operating activities for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, therefore the
statement of comprehensive income was not presented.
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